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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey FR &
Chairman F /&
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| am pleased to report that the Group is emerging
from the global financial and economic crisis in
sound condition, with a more focused business
strategy, streamlined operations and a healthy
financial position.

As reflected by improvements in the gross
profit margin and market share, the Group has
successfully managed its business in the face of
a challenging global economic environment.

The overall improvement in profitability reflected
ongoing efforts to maintain a product mix with a
major portion of premium items that command
higher margins, as well as tight control and re-
engineering disciplines. The Board is confident
that by maintaining a balanced and constantly
fine-tuned business and product portfolio,
and with the support of robust multi-country
production capabilities, the Group will be able to
continue its success amid the ongoing turbulence
for the foreseeable future.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group recorded a
decline of revenue of approximately 11.9% to approximately
HK$1,290 million (2009: approximately HK$1,464 million). Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company grew significantly,
by approximately 97.4% to approximately HK$105 million.

The proportionally higher profit is mainly attributable to the
Group’s sustained efforts in growing higher-margin businesses,
successful cost re-engineering derived from efficiencies achieved
upon completion of a reorganization of its manufacturing and
administrative systems, combined with the implementation of
strict cost controls.

Basic earnings per share for the year increased by approximately
100.4% to approximately HK16.43 cents, compared with
approximately HK8.20 cents for the financial year 2009. The
Board has proposed a final dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary

share. Together with the interim dividend of HK1.6 cents per
share, the Group has declared a total dividend for the year of
HK8.6 cents per ordinary share, an increase of approximately
115.0% over the previous financial year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group’s capacity to work flexibly in catering to the stringent
and ever-changing production and quality requirements of
its customers is the result of years of dedication to research
and development (“R&D”), manufacturing system refinement,
productivity enhancement and staff training and retention.

This core competence has enabled the Group to work hand in
hand with its customers to explore new product function and
design possibilities. As a result, the Group has been able to offer
a stream of new types of footwear that have delivered market
successes for clients.

The long-term effort to maintain a multi-location production base
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), Vietnam and
Cambodia has yielded continuing satisfaction with the Group.
Leveraging on this diversified production base, the Group is now
able to serve the varied manufacturing needs of its customers in
different markets. This has resulted in a healthy market spread
for the Group which is one of the key factors in its resilience.

Both as part of a commitment to being a responsible employer
and as a means of enhancing efficiency, the Group adopts a
staff policy that aims at rewarding its team fairly and reasonably,
helping them achieve personal and professional growth, and
unleashing staff potential by empowering its team members.
As an additional incentive, the Group adopted a share award
scheme on 3 June 2010 to recognize the contributions of the
employees in any member company of the Group. The Group’s
long-term dedication to staff engagement has resulted in a
high retention rate and steady improvement in productivity on
manufacturing lines.

| am also pleased to report that the Group is entering the fiscal
year 2010/11 in an even more competitive position in the current
market.

The increase in gross margin last year was a result of the Group’s
sustained efforts on growing and developing higher-margin
businesses, successful cost re-engineering, implementation of
its improved manufacturing and administrative systems which
enhanced efficiency, and better cost base after completing a
global reorganization and the implementation of stringent cost
control.
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Going forward, although the economic climate is still uncertain,
we are cautiously optimistic that the Group will deliver growth
in the financial year 2011. This will be achieved through pursing
its strategy of product innovation, further gains in market share,
geographic expansion and operational excellence.

Looking ahead, the uncertain economic climate is likely to
continue to make the global footwear market challenging,
however the Directors are confident that it can maintain its
competitiveness by moving up the value chain and, as mentioned
earlier, adopting stringent cost-control measures.

In 2010, leveraging on its R&D capabilities and core strength, the
Group uses its existing design facilities in Zhongshan to serve the
increasingly specialised needs of its customer, Skechers, for the
design and manufacturing of a new model “Shape Ups”. Shape
Ups from Skechers are designed to get people fit while they
walk, work, shop, and more. Serving as an addition to boots,
sandals and dress casuals, this new product has the function of
retraining muscles, helping people improve their posture while
they walk.

As exemplified in the development of specialised footwear, the
Group’s R&D edge enables it to move closer to customers and
respond quickly to their individual needs and specifications.
This core competence will continue to strengthen the Group’s
marketing drive to secure more orders of Shape Ups from
Skechers.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Retail markets in most developed countries started to show
signs of recovery towards the end of the calendar year 2009.
This, coupled with the rebound in sales we have seen in the first
three months of the calendar year 2010, gives some causes for
optimism. However, given the instability of certain European
Union countries and the subsequent volatility in global financial
markets, we still believe there are considerable uncertainty over
the sustainability of this recovery.

Despite all this, the Group remains confident of a steady recovery
in its manufacturing operations, as the export markets began
to show signs of recovery forecast in the second half of the
reporting year. With reference to the improvement in our order
book, the Group predicts a moderate growth in export volume
in the coming year, as well as a mild increase in the average
selling price (“ASP”).

Rising costs will bring more challenges to the Group in the
financial year 2011. Material and component prices have
increased remarkably since the lows in 2009 and 2010. Lead
times are also longer. Leveraging on our economies of scale and
strong procurement power, the Group is working closely with its
suppliers to mitigate these impacts.
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The increase in the minimum wage of workers in the PRC, which
came into effect in May 2010, will also contribute to rising labour
costs in the PRC. We will continue to re-engineer products for
lower costs, and seek productivity gains through increasing
automation and improving manufacturing processes.

In order to counteract the increasing wage costs and other
unfavourable factors, the Group plans to shift its more labour-
intensive processes to locations further inland of the PRC, in
order to improve input costs and stabilize the labour supply.

Facing the escalating manufacturing costs in the southern part of
the PRC, the Group plans to adopt a three-pronged strategy for
production. First, our existing Zhuhai and Zhongshan facilities will
be further transformed and upgraded to become our high-end
R&D centre, dedicated to serving the United States of America
(the “US”) customers’ requirements for items with higher added
value and shorter lead times. Meanwhile, production dedicated to
European shipments is supported by our Vietham and Cambodia
factories. Finally, our inland facilities in Jiangxi, the PRC will be
designated for labour-intensive processes such as stitching and
sewing, and will become the production base for lower-cost
items and those allowing longer delivery lead times.

The Group will continue to seek expansion of its manufacturing
capacity through organic growth, rather than through acquisitions.
As part of our long-term effort to optimize our cost structure,
we will continue to pursue possible relocation of our production
facilities in southern China to our lower-cost base in Jiangxi.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

In the long term, the outlook for the Group’s retail operations in
the PRC is promising given the strength of the PRC economy
and the rising income of consumers. On the retail side, the Group
is well geared up to further reap the benefits of economic growth
in the PRC.

Despite the global financial turmoil, the retail market in the PRC is
enjoying sustained growth. The Directors believe that the PRC’s
consumer market, especially men’s causal as well as babies’ and
children’s footwear markets, will continue to experience robust
growth in the coming years on the back of a healthy and steadily
growing economy. In view of this, the Group will consider further
expansion into the PRC market to capture opportunities in the
growing demand for quality fashion footwear in the mid-to-upper
market segments.

The Group remains optimistic about the prospects of the retail
market, as sustainable economic development and social mobility
support a growing demand for quality fashion footwear.

In the coming year, the Group will continue to implement its
store expansion strategy, targeting high growth in retail revenue
through same-store sales and space expansion under MOCCA,
Fiona’s Prince, Fin-shop and AIMS brand stores in both Hong
Kong and the PRC markets.

The Directors believe the strategy allows the Group to be well-
positioned to overcome the challenges ahead and gain profit
from any opportunities that may arise.
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Although the investment in retailing and wholesaling business
segment had inevitably affected the Group’s earnings this year,
the Directors believe that it is a sound investment that will bring
in new income and earnings streams to sustain long-term returns
to the Shareholders in the coming years.

The Group has strong R&D capabilities, a market leadership
position, a strong financial position and highly efficient operations.
We will continue to focus on product innovation and geographic
expansion to achieve growth, while managing costs and risks to
enhance profitability.

In view of current global economic environment, the Group
has focused on maintaining strict operational and financial
management to successfully implement its business strategy.
The Group’s cash position remains healthy.

While remaining prudent, the Group is committed to the
continuous expansion of its production capacity in line with
demand. In the year ahead, we will also drive continuous
enhancement of product offerings through R&D and production
efficiencies through automation and staff training.

Looking ahead, although the unprecedented economic
environment may have various adverse effects on the Group’s
various businesses around the world, the Group’s established
businesses are expected to continue to perform satisfactorily
with the new retail segment expected to continue to progress.
The Directors have full confidence in the future prospects of the
Group in the long run.

Our ability to make further progress in our businesses
notwithstanding the challenging market conditions signifies the
strength of the Group. | would like to thank my fellow directors,
senior management and all staff for their support in meeting the
challenges we currently face. | would also like to thank all our
suppliers, business partners and customers, whose close co-
operation has helped us to make the year a successful one.

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 July 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is pleased to report a set of encouraging results

amidst ongoing market adversities in the US and new economic
challenges in the European market. During the year ended 31
March 2010, the Group recorded an increase of approximately
97.4% increase in net profit attributable to the Shareholders
of approximately HK$105 million (2009: approximately HK$53
million), enhanced by efforts to optimize material usage
and labour efficiency through the implementation of a lean
manufacturing system.

Revenue for the year decreased by approximately 11.9% to
approximately HK$1,290 million (2009: approximately HK$1,464
million). The decrease mainly incorporated a decrease of
approximately 4.5% in the ASP and a decrease of approximately
8.5% in output in terms of product volume from the manufacturing
and sales of footwear products.

The decrease in ASP was partly due to the growth in the babies’
and children’s footwear category which has a lower ASP. In
order to build resilience into its business portfolio, the Group
will continue to maintain a balanced product mix and groom the
growth of each product category through development of new
models. Going forward, the Group will continue to develop new
models of premium casual footwear for existing customers, at
the same time procure new customers in the global footwear
market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The well balanced geographical customer diversification of
the Group is another defence mechanism against the macro
turbulence. During the year under review, shipments to the US
contributed to approximately 51.1% (2009: approximately 50.4%)
of the Group’s revenue, while the European segment accounted
for approximately 41.5% (2009: approximately 41.9%) of the
Group’s revenue. The Group will maintain its prudent policy in
monitoring and fine-tuning its product and market mix to stay
relevant to the evolving market trend.

During the reporting year, the Group managed to further reduce
the material costs under the lean manufacturing system. The
launch of the new “wellness” footwear product line, Shape Ups
from Skechers, also contributed to the reduction in material
costs due to the economies of scale in production. In addition
to enhancing production efficiency, the implementation of the
lean manufacturing system also resulted in shortened lead times,
which in turn reduced transportation expenses. Along with a
better production planning in Vietham and Cambodia factories,
airfreight charges were brought down by approximately HK$7
million, year on year, in the face of a resurgence in crude oil
prices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As a result of the lean manufacturing, despite the increase
in wage rates and the appreciation of the Renminbi (“RMB”),
the Group was able to reduce total labour and staff costs by
approximately HK$10 million compared with the previous year.
This was achieved through continuous productivity enhancement
and the Group’s dedicated efforts to nurture and retain talents,
continuing efforts were also made to control and reduce the
subcontracting charges, mainly in the Vietnam factory, where the
subcontracting charges were reduced by approximately HK$9
million to approximately HK$14 million for the year ended 31
March 2010 (2009: approximately HK$23 million).

The increase in the value added tax (“VAT”) rebate for exports
from the PRC to 15% also exerted a positive impact of
approximately HK$16 million to the Group’s net profit for the
year. Rental and advertising expenses increased in line with
the roll-out of the Group’s retail programme in Hong Kong.
The Group is committed to maintaining its strict controls on
administrative and selling costs.

Earnings per share advanced approximately 100.4%, year on
year, to approximately HK16.43 cents (2009: approximately
HK8.20 cents). A final dividend of HK7.0 cents (2009: HK2.5
cents) was recommended for the year ended 31 March 2010.
The Group is delighted to share its results with the Shareholders
who have been very supportive of its development plans. With
the expectation of strong cash flow over the foreseeable future,
the Group is dedicated to maintaining its current dividend
policy.

With the global financial crisis gradually receding in many
markets, uncertainties and pressure on operations still cloud
the manufacturing sector. Nevertheless, the Group is proud
to be able to continue to strengthen its leading position in the
industry and excellence in manufacturing high-quality footwear
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Leveraging on its strong manufacturing base located in
Southeast Asia and the PRC, the Group continues to provide
a comprehensive range of customized services for the world’s
major footwear brands.

The Group’s operational excellence is also supported by a sound
financial position. During the year, debtors’ turnover period was
extended to approximately 34 days (2009: approximately 21
days). Cash and cash equivalents were maintained at a favourable
level of approximately HK$527 million (2009: approximately
HK$412 million) as at 31 March 2010.

The Group’s robust competitive position is underpinned by
its dual-focus on the premium casual as well as babies’ and
children’s footwear categories. To add further growth momentum
and to enhance its margin, the Group has recently introduced a
premium line of footwear to its existing product portfolio.

During the year under review, a “wellness” line of premium
footwear was developed and introduced for Skechers. This new
product line was launched to a strong market response which
has validated the Group’s R&D edge.

The Group now operates a total of 38 production lines in Zhuhai,
Zhongshan and Jiangxi in the PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia.
With the new facilities in operation, the Group’s annual capacity
currently stands at around 20 million pairs. Overall facilities
utilization stood at 65% during the year while a certain capacity
has been reserved for the development of new styles and
product categories.

With the operating environment remaining uncertain, the Group
adjusted the time frame for its capacity expansion plan. As
part of this, facilities upgrading has been continued at the new
facilities in Cambodia and in Jiangxi Province, the PRC. The
three production lines in Cambodia have been ramped up to
smooth operation and have already begun to contribute to
the Group’s topline. In the year under review, the Cambodian
facilities contributed approximately 5% of the Group’s turnover.
The new facilities in Jiangxi, which commenced production in
the reporting year, contributed approximately 4% of the Group’s
revenue during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Major customers during the year under review include Skechers,
Clarks, Stride Rite, Elefanten and Rockport, which in aggregate
accounted for approximately 94.3% of the Group’s revenue.

The slowdown in the RMB appreciation trend during the year
has in part mitigated the rise in labour costs in the PRC. This,
together with the effect of the lean manufacturing system,
brought a positive impact of approximately 0.6% to the Group’s
profit margin.

The increment in the export VAT rebate from 11% to 15%
brought an additional positive benefit of approximately 1.1% to
the profit margin.

The Group will continue to expand its product mix to cater the
needs of brand owners for innovative, cost-effective and high-
quality production solutions. The launch of the new “wellness”
line of premium products is a good illustration of the Group’s
success in capturing new market opportunities with new product
ideas. This new product line also resulted in an improvement in
the Group’s profit margin and the overall ASP.

At the same time, the Group will continue to explore opportunities
for pursuing strategic partnerships that will create value-added
and synergistic benefits for its existing businesses.

In 2008, as part of its long-term diversification and margin-
enhancement initiative, the Group acquired MOCCA, a retail-
chain business specializing in ladies’ shoes and bags. Although
this business line incurred a loss of approximately HK$18.1
million (2009: approximately HK$14.4 million) during the year, the
Group is confident of its prospect of generating a new income
stream in the future. The loss was mainly attributable to the high
rental expenses in Hong Kong.

The MOCCA chain made its first advance into the PRC during
the year and currently operates a network of five shops in Hong
Kong, four in the PRC and one in Macau. Supported by its
production capability in the babies’ and children’s category,
the retail unit introduced a new brand of infant shoes — “Fiona’s
Prince”. This baby footwear line currently has two shops in
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong and four shops in the PRC. Negotiations have been
underway for the establishment of more retail points for both
MOCCA and Fiona’s Prince in the PRC.

During the year, the Group acquired the FRD Group, a men’s
fashion retail business. The FRD Group owns the brand AIMS,
signifying arts in motion, which targets the younger generation
of consumers. The FRD Group currently operates two shops
in Guangzhou in the PRC. In the year under review, the unit
incurred a loss of approximately HK$4.7 million (2009: Nil).
Additional points of sale will be established in the PRC during
2010 in order to tap into the continuing consumption growth.

The Group will implement and maintain prudent measures to
control and facilitate the development of these new business
units, and it believes that the retailing segment will establish
itself as another major source of income for the Group over the
medium-to-long term.

The Group generally finances its operation by internally and
generated cashflow and banking facilities provided by its
bankers.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$527 million (2009: approximately HK$412
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is substantially debt-free. As at 31 March 2010, the
Group had banking facilities amounted to an aggregate sum of
approximately HK$211 million (2009: approximately HK$256
million) with various banks. Out of the trade and overdraft banking
facilities of approximately HK$196 million (2009: approximately
HK$226 million) in Hong Kong had been granted to the Group,
approximately HK$2 million (2009: approximately HK$3 million)
had been utilized as at 31 March 2010.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the current ratio was
approximately 2.08 (2009: approximately 1.98) based on current
assets of approximately HK$781 million and current liabilities
of approximately HK$376 million and the quick ratio was
approximately 1.75 (2009: approximately 1.63).

As at 31 March 2010, the Group did not have any interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

The Group will continue to maintain conservative cash flow
management to sustain a strong cash position. Having considered
the major expansion plans of the Group, including Cambodia and
the PRC in the next two to three years, the Directors believe
opinion that the Group has adequate liquidity to meet its current
and future working capital requirements on its operations and
expansion.

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenditure
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the RMB and the US
dollars (“USD”). It is the Group’s policy to adopt a conservative
approach on foreign exchange exposure management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

However, the Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is
required. The Group generally finances its operation with internal
resources and bank facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong.
Interest rates of borrowings are fixed by reference to the HKD
Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate, the USD London Inter-Bank
Offered Rate or the Singapore Inter-Bank Offered Rate.

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the
Group’s global operations and to minimize the Group’s financial
risks. As a measure of additional prudence, the Group cautiously
uses derivative financial instruments, principally forward currency
contracts as appropriate for risk management purposes only, for
hedging transactions and for managing the Group’s receivables
and payables.

The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly arose from
the net cash flow and the net working capital translation of its
PRC subsidiaries. The management of the Group will actively
hedge the foreign currency exposures through natural hedges,
forward contracts and options, if consider necessary. The
management of currency risk is centralised in the headquarter
of the Group in Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ equity increased to approximately HK$852 million
as at 31 March 2010 (2009: approximately HK$768 million). As
at 31 March 2010, the Group did not have any interest-bearing
bank borrowings (2009: nil), resulting nil% (2009: nil%) of the
shareholders equity.

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the
PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia, employed approximately 12,000
employees as at 31 March 2010. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels
and the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Share options may also be granted in accordance to
the terms of the Group’s approved share option scheme.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

With a portfolio of businesses that span across the globe, the
Group works and plans diligently to build on its success to
achieve long-term growth. The Group encourages innovative
business and individuals are given creative platforms to explore.
At the same time, each business is managed prudently to ensure
steady growth through sustainable business models.

The Group builds a strong foundation in its local market through
the provision of high quality products and services, and through
contribution to charitable activities and sponsorship initiatives to
connect with the local communities.

The Directors believe that corporate social responsibility is an
integral part of our corporate culture and a key to long-term
success. Our management philosophy is to be, caring and
respectful, creating an harmonious atmosphere, which we apply
not only to our business practices, but also our interactions with
the community. By organising voluntary services, donations and
sponsorships, we hope to fulfill our social responsibilities and
offer assistance to those in need.

Giving back to the community is an important element of being
a responsible corporation. The Group serves local communities
through volunteerism, charitable activities and sponsorship
initiatives that span the spectrum to improve the overall standard
of living for those around us.

The Directors believe that as a responsible multinational
company, we should contribute to those less fortunate in
communities around us. Hence, the Group contributed to many
charities including the World Vision Charity in both Hualian and
llan townships in Taiwan in early 2009 and Friends of Caritas in
July 2009. Shoes were given to both individual needy families
and established orphanages, with an emphasis on providing
suitable footwear for infants and children.

Volunteerism is encouraged across our Group and our employees
have enthusiastically served the communities with their time,
talents, and heart.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Since 2007, the Group has supported sustainable social and
economic development of the country through the provision of
opportunity to people in Cambodia. Sensitive to the particular
needs of Cambodian society, in which a disproportionate segment
of the population deals with the disability of amputeeism, the
Group has made and continues to make a commitment, through
cooperation with the Cambodian National Volleyball League
(Disabled) and the Ministry of Social Affairs, Labour and Youth
Rehabilitation, to provide an equal opportunity workplace and
environment that accomodates integration of persons with a
disability. Inclusion of disabled workers is a keynote feature of
the unique Cambodian factory.

Typhoon Morakot

On 8 August 2009, Typhoon Morakot devastated the south of
Taiwan, with heavy rains causing serious flooding and extensive
structural damage. As a company with long-standing roots in
Taiwan, the disaster weighed heavily on the hearts and minds of
our Company. As a symbol of solidarity for those affected, the
Group and its management donate approximately HK$380,000
under the Group’s name, to The Red Cross Society for disaster
assistance and relief.

Going ahead, the Group remains committed to serving the
community and further improving the quality of life for the people
we work with, as well as the environment which we share.
We will continue to explore new ways to apply our corporate
values and further contribute to the healthy development of our
communities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The
board of the Directors (“the Board”) is committed to ensure the
self-regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. These include a Board of high
caliber members, Board Committees and effective internal audit
and good systems of internal controls. The Company regularly
reviews the corporate governance procedures and developments
of the Company. The Company applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the period under review, except that:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) of the Company
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and CEO of the Company should be clearly established and set
out in writing. The roles of the chairman and the CEO of the
Company are not separated and are performed by the same
individual, Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey. The Directors will meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company. The Directors consider that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Directors
and the management of Company and believe that this structure
will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms without deviation from
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of listed issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2010.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company complied with the code provisions under the
CG Code so far as they are applicable and a majority of the
recommended best practices under the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2010.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible
and effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/her
duty in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. During the year under review,
the members of the Board included:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony SBS, J.P.
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report. Save as disclosed
in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)
among the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The record of attendance of individual Directors at the Board
and Board committee meetings held during 2010 is set out in
the following table:

Name of Directors

EEng

Executive Directors #{TEZE

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey B & 5 4
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen &% &%+
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian R {6 %4

Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby =8 %4

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu 28 % £

Non-executive Directors #HTES
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony sBS, J.P. FX L4 » Bxigs A T4t
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel BR& e &

Independent non-executive Directors By F#TEE
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny &5 [ % 4

Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.p. BRI 24+ 2888 - AT4+
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 3 FI &4

Average Attendance Rate 51 & %

Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for Board approval before public
reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted
by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.

Board
Exg

100%

TREBINEEEN_ZFT-TFRABTZESTER
EEREegRchFRLE:

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HiE/BITRY
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee
BEREEE RERZE8 FMzEE
4/4 N/A 11 1/1
4/4 N/A N/A 11
4/4 N/A N/A N/A
4/4 N/A N/A N/A
4/4 N/A N/A N/A
4/4 2/2 1/1 N/A
4/4 N/A N/A N/A
4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
4/4 2/2 11 1/1
4/4 2/2 11 11
100% 100% 100%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the
Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of
reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific term
of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Under the code provision B.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
should establish a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, such as any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year, members of the Remuneration Committee
included:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 13 July 2009
to discuss remuneration related matters. All members of the
Remuneration Committee namely Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey,
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny,
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.p. and Mr. Yung Tse-kwong,
Steven, attended the meeting. The Remuneration Committee
has considered and reviewed the existing terms of employment
contracts of the executive Directors and appointment letters
of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors with reference to the factors including
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considers that the
existing terms of employment contracts of the executive Directors
and appointment letters of the non-executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors are fair and reasonable.
Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are set out on
page 49 of this report.

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommmendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates for
Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s bye-
laws in selecting and recommending candidates for directorship
during the year under review.
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During the year, members of the Nomination Committee
included:

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony sBs, J.p. (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 13 July 2009. All
members of the Nomination Committee, namely, Mr. Chen Ming-
hsiung, Mickey, Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny, Mr. Chan Mo-po,
Paul, Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony and Mr. Yung Tse-kwong,
Steven, attended the meeting.

During the Nomination Committee meeting, the Nomination
Committee considered and resolved that all the existing Directors
shall be recommended to be retained by the Company. Further,
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws and as resolved by
the Nomination Committee, Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, Mr.
Lee Kung, Bobby and Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony will retire,
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deal clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control
systems.

During the year until the date of this report, members of the Audit
Committee included:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony sBS, J.p.
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year and all
the committee members, namely Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny,
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony sBS, J.p., Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul
MH, J.P. and Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven, were present in these
meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group’s audited consolidated results for the year ended
31 March 2010 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures
have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditors are fair and reasonable.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditors, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group. During the year under review,
the fees payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditors, for audit services and non-audit services totalling of
HK$1,280,000 and HK$323,000, respectively.

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the independent auditors to the shareholders
of the Company are set out on page 55 to 56 of this report.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal control to ensure the effective and
adequate internal control system. The Board convened meetings
regularly to discuss financial, operational and compliance controls
risk management functions.

As part of the process of the annual review, the Board has
performed evaluation of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function to ensure that there is adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the function, and their
training programmes and budget.

The internal audit function monitors compliance with policies and
standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures
across the whole Group. Findings regarding internal control
matters are reported to the Audit Committee. The external
auditors have access to the full set of internal audit reports.
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The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.

The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and press announcement.

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. The external auditor is also
required to be present to assist the Directors in addressing any
relevant queries by shareholders.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to express their views and ask Directors and
management questions regarding the Company. All shareholders
of the Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and SGM and other corporate communications. The
notices are also published in newspapers. Separate resolutions
are required at general meetings on each distinct issue. Each
shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
in his stead.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman shall
demand a poll in the Company’s general meetings whenever
voting by poll is required under the Listing Rules. The Company’s
bye-laws has set out the procedures, requirements and
circumstances where voting by poll is required, and in corporate
communications to shareholders for matters where shareholders’
voting are required, the procedures for and shareholders’
right to demand a poll shall be specified. Such procedure and
shareholders’ right would be reiterated and explained by the
Chairman at the commencement of the general meeting of
shareholders.

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for all
employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected
to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and responsible
manner.

The Company will continue it enduing effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try the
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet
with the continuous changing environment and for the benefit
of the shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name

e

Chen Ming-hsiung,
Mickey
PR B 1

Huang Hsiu-duan,
Helen

gt

Age Position held

FiR B

57 Chairman and
managing director
FEFREFRKE

53 Executive director
WITES

Number of
years of
service

EREFR

29

29
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Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Chen is a co-founder of the Group. Mr.
Chen has more than 32 years’ experience in
the footwear industry. He is responsible for
formulating the overall business strategy and
plans of the Group. He also oversees the
functions of marketing and product design
and development. He is the husband of
Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.

REERAIEBEEMAZ — EFEBI2FH
EXLR BRERENTASEE 2 EBEBR
BENEtE - WEEMSHEERERRAERL
fE - REERERHRL LT ZLK °

Madam Huang is the wife of Mr. Chen Ming-
hsiung, Mickey and is a co-founder of the
Group. She is responsible for the Group’s
administration and has more than 33 years’
experience in the footwear industry.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience

e Fik B EREH BEER

Lee Kung, Bobby 55 Executive director 29 Mr. Lee is a co-founder of the Group

2= i) HITES and is responsible for the Group’s overall
production in Vietnam. He is also responsible
for formulating and controlling the Group’s
quality control policy and procedures. Mr.
Lee has more than 30 years’ experience in
the footwear industry.
FRERREHAPAZ — BEAEEEY
AZEBERBEESTH  TASHRIRIEGRER
mEERIBRLERF - FREAFRIOFRE

Kimmel, Phillip Brian 58 Executive director 16 Mr. Kimmel is responsible for the Group’s

TR WMITES marketing and customer relations. He holds
a Bachelor’'s degree from the University of
Southern California. He also holds a Master’s
degree in China Regional Studies from
the University of Washington. Mr. Kimmel
has more than 34 years’ experience in
the footwear industry in Taiwan, the USA,
Canada and the PRC.
MEETEAEE T SHBERTFBES
H HEEEEMMASRET S0 REREA
BREFRELEM - MEEEBRIMFA
& KB MEART BEREELR -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of

years of

Name Age Position held service
HE FiR Bifu ERFH
Wong Hei-chiu 43 Executive director 2

=8 HITES
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Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer
of the Group and company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s
degree in business administration from
Lingnan University, Hong Kong. He is a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising),
a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom, an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Wong has over 19 years of
corporate finance and financial management
experience in Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Wong has
worked as the group financial controller and
company secretary in a Hong Kong listed
electronics manufacturing company for over
8 years; and as the finance director and
company secretary in another Hong Kong
listed wholesale and distribution company for
over 4 years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of

Name Age Position held service Business experience
HE FiR Bifu EHFH BELR
Chow Wing-kin, 60 Non-executive director 16 Mr. Chow serves as the chairman of the
Anthony, SBS, J.P. IEMITES Nomination Committee, a member of each of
K the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
REFMES - AFML Committee of the Company.

BRERSARFRREZEGIENERZES
RHMEREZKE -

Mr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise
in Hong Kong and England and Wales.
He has been a practising solicitor of Hong
Kong for over 29 years and is currently
a partner of the law firm Messrs. Peter C
Wong, Chow & Chow. Mr. Chow is a China-
Appointed Attesting Officer and member
of the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission.
He is also the chairman of the Process
Review Panel for the Securities and Futures
Commission and a steward of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club. His principal areas of
practice include corporate and commercial,
property law, probate and civil litigation.
He is also an independent non-executive
director of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
and Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China, Limited, which are listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and The Link Management Limited.
He is the former president of the Law Society
of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of

years of

Name Age Position held service

HE FiR Bifu ERFH

Chan Ho-man, Daniel 55 Vice chairman and 14
BoR s non-executive director

BIEFERIFATES
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Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Chan is responsible for advising the
management on the corporate strategy and
policy development.
BREFXBAEMCERBRBERERAEEER
HER -

Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has more than 31
years’ accounting and finance experience in
Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
HE FiR Bifu EHFH BELR
Tam King-ching, 61 Independent 16 Mr. Tam serves as the chairman of the
Kenny non-executive director Audit Committee, a member of each of the
EREEIE BUIEMITES Nomination Committee and Remuneration

Committee of the Company. He is a
practising Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario,
Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as a member
of the Ethics Committee and the Practice
Review Committee in the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is a past president of The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Tam also
serves as an independent non-executive
director of four other listed companies on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
namely, Shougang Concord Grand (Group)
Limited, CCT Telecom Holdings Limited,
Starlite Holdings Limited and Van Shung
Chong Holdings Limited, and a listed
company on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange, namely, North Asia
Strategic Holdings Limited. He was an
independent non-executive director of King
Stone Energy Group Limited (formerly known
as Yun Sky Chemical (International) Holdings
Limited), a Hong Kong listed company, during
the period from August 2005 to September
2008.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name Age
HE FiR
Chan Mo-po, Paul, 55
MH, J.P.

BRI R

REFE  KFHL

Number of

years of

Position held service

Bifu ERFH

Independent 6
non-executive director

BYFHITES
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Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Chan serves as a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He is the chairman of Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of three
companies publicly listed in Hong Kong,
namely, The Wharf (Holdings) Limited, Hong
Kong Economic Times Holdings Limited and
China Communications Services Corporation
Limited. He has been appointed as the
chairman of the Legal Aid Services Council
since September 2006.
REERARRIBREES IREZEGNF
MEEGsKE - tWRBEIEEE (F8) &5
MEBMBERARNERE  TA=FAREER
BETHWAR - NEEEEBRAR  &H
LEAWEEBR AR RPBEBERSERS
BRARMBMYIFNITES - B —TTRF
NAREZERZEZERDRBEBHERE -

Mr. Chan is a graduate of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong where he obtained
both his Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees in
Business Administration.
RELERENBTETXAR  ERRBRELHE
ERETRETS -

Mr. Chan has over 31 years’ experience
in accounting and finance field and is the
former president of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
the former chairman of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants — Hong
Kong. In 2007, he was appointed as a
Justice of the Peace. In 2008, he was
appointed as a member of Shanghai City’s
Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Chan was elected as a
member of Legislative Council representing
the Accountancy Functional Constituency in
September 2008.

BREEN G KU A EEA BRI FER
VWREBGAMAGAEREEBRFIFARE
SRASERENGAER - R _ZTLFRE
ZEAAFEHT  RZEEN\FEZTATE
ARBUAHRE R LBMEE - REAR-E
ENFNRABERLEZEEE RREFTAY
BEAR R o



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
HE FiR Bifu EHFH BELR
Yung Tse-kwong, 60 Independent 5 Mr. Yung serves as a member of the
Steven non-executive director Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
HFIL B IEHITESE and Remuneration Committee of the

Company. Mr. Yung is a partner of A R
Evans Capital Partners Limited and was
the former chairman of Clear Media Limited
which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. During his 29 years of
media, advertising, consumer marketing,
manufacturing and retailing career, he also
held senior management positions with, and
brought extensive management experience
from multinational companies including the
Coca-Cola Company in the USA and Asia
Pacific. Mr. Yung serves on the boards of
various community, corporate and charitable
organizations.
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FHRARIBERPINERERARIZATEESS
FF o MAERB2F2IHE  BERHEHK
B HERTEELR  UNEBRGTARE
ERIARTERRIEER A RN &R ERB -
BEEEZEERLR - HAEELERNZETEZ
HEER ZFAEBLREASEHBCEETSR
7% o
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name Age
" A T

Hong Kong Office:
BEEPEE

Lai Chi-hang, David 43

REE

Zhongshan factory

LR E

Huang Pen-yuan, 57
David
BARJR

Liu San-teng, Gerry 48
2IL

Number of
years of

Position held service
B EHEH
Group 17
financial controller
SE B RE
Assistant General 19
Manager
RS
Senior Manager 18

T IE
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Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Lai is responsible for the Group’s
accounting and financial management. Mr.
Lai holds a Master’s degree in business
administration from University of Wales.
He has 21 years’ experience in the fields
of auditing, accounting and financial
management.
RELBEREEZ ST RMBER - BEL
BRERBRT A2 IEEEELSMN AF21F
%8 SRRV ERLR -

Mr. David Huang has been with the Group
for 19 years. He has more than 26 years’
experience in the footwear industry. He is
presently responsible for a key account of
the Group and is also running the Zhongshan
factory business.
BRREEMAREECF19F - REERE
XEHPB6FEELR -BLELEAEAEEE
ERPZEBIREPILREE -

Mr. Gerry Liu has been with the Group for
18 years. He participated in the building
design and execution of the Group’s Vietnam
factory complex. Currently, he is in charge of
Zhongshan factory production.
ZILBEEMAREBEEF18F » KB HEAR
SEEERCER - BRIZIEEBBEEER L
FRAEE ©



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of

Name Age Position held service Business experience

HE FiR Bifu EHFH BELR

Zhuhai and Jiangxi

factory

BRBRIAME

Huang Chun-hua, 50 Senior Manager 27 Mr. Charles Huang has been with the

Charles TR Group since 1983, has more than 28 years’

BEE experience in the footwear industry. He is
currently in charge of the factory operations
in Zhuhai and Jiangxi.
BEEEER-NN=ZFNMALREER - ERE
FEBPBF &R -=ALANBEEER
8 ROT PR 2 & & o

Vietham and

Cambodia factory

M R R E M E

Chen Hsien-yu, 51 Senior Manager 16 Mr. Simon Chen has been with the Group

Simon BITIHIE for 16 years. He has more than 23 years’

R EA experiences in the footwear industry.
Currently, Mr. Chen is in charge of customer
relations and factory operations in Vietnam
and Cambodia.
PREMVSEEMAREBRDA6F - REEREFE
BHBR23F 2 158 - REE BB Mm R RIFE
BEEEFZEBREE -

Retail

2E

Chen Hung-chun, 27 Managing Director 3 Ms. Fiona Chen graduated from National

Fiona FERKE Taiwan University with a BA degree, major in

[RITE International Business. After graduation, she

further her studies in footwear design at De
Montfort University, the United Kingdom. Ms.
Chen is in charge of the Group’s footwear
retailing business.
RNMNEEXERBYRERE BEXSE L
B FTEEREHE - XRENEBEDe
Montfort University:E{EEE8ERET - IHAE AR
SECZEBRTERK -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements. During the year, the Group
commenced the menswear retailing business after the acquisition
of FRD Worldwide Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as “FRD Group”). Other than the above, there were no significant
changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Group
during the year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 57 to 156.

An interim dividend of HK1.6 cents per ordinary share was paid
on 5 February 2010. The Directors recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary share in respect
of the year to shareholders on the register of members on 27
August 2010. Details are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements. Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, such
dividend will be payable on or about 28 September 2010, in cash
in Hong Kong dollars.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
24 August 2010 to 27 August 2010, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfers of shares shall be effected.
To qualify for the dividend and for attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all share
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 23
August 2010.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEERBERAENBRFECEEREENRGRE

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the ZHE (BRashEe Mo BERYBHRE)

respective published audited financial statements, is set out AT c A BEWFLEZHBHRE 2 —F
yaN

below. This summary does not form part of the audited financial 9 ©
statements.

Year ended 31 March Z=F=+—-HBL&EE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-EZfF ZETNF —TT)N\F —ETF —ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FTAET FETL FAT THET
REVENUE Wz 1,289,684 1,463,824 1,317,857 1,156,666 1,278,488
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BA%iATR5FI 134,241 59,899 65,121 39,785 70,360
Income tax expense FTSHi Bt (29,220 (6,702) (14,723) (5,994) (10,225)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY
EATREREBEAELRR 105,021 53,197 50,398 33,791 60,135
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

As at 31 March R=B=+—H

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—B-2F ZTTNE ZTTNE ZETLF T RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET FEL FAL THET
PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT
¥ BERRE 357,856 370,526 369,094 342,758 367,716
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
HEft LA EFHE 76,130 79,229 76,379 74,208 76,064
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REME 6,378 3,712 4,310 3,060 2,973
DEPOSITS PAID B {4 3,350 4,444 2,367 = =
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB
MEMBERSHIPS € fr& &R & 988 1,003 1,017 1,030 1,045
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS At HERE 2,185 880 1,886 1,693 1,369
CURRENT ASSETS % &4 E 780,867 623,947 626,241 525,614 498,120
TOTAL ASSETS #& & 1,227,754 1,083,741 1,081,294 948,363 947 287
CURRENT LIABILITIES REI& & 376,048 315,602 343,154 277,136 261,154
TOTAL LIABILITIES & & 376,048 315,602 343,154 277,136 261,154
851,706 768,139 738,140 671,227 686,133

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and REEME BMEMRERREDERRNFEEZ
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in FH)FIF D RN ISR EMITE14%16 ©
notes 14 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share FA - ARERAREREEY 2 FIERERD
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, RIER B 75 TR Bt 5E 25 126 ©

are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements,

respectively.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye- RARz AR BRE-NAN—FREVER
laws of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda MEBELBER AT  WARBBERLG
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro M35 BRI R BT HIAR -

rata basis to existing shareholders.

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled its FA - ARARBBHERZFAAERAT ([HR
4,914,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Frl) B[O & 5% §54,914,0000% 15 - EEMR A -
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors considered that the share BHBEEERBRAARZEEZREFF - %
repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders of the Company B BT

who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the share

repurchases are set out below.

Aggregate

consideration

Number (excluding

of shares Highest price Lowest price  transaction cost)

repurchased per share per share KE#RE

Month/Year A/ & BEZROHE BRESE BREEKE (FEEIXZIHEF)
HK$/E 7T HKS$#E 7T HK$'000F % 7T

April 2009 ZZZNF M A 2,014,000 0.67 0.59 1,274
July 2009 ZEZThF+A 68,000 0.85 0.83 57
August 2009 —ZZ NF )\ A 30,000 0.85 0.84 25
September 2009 —ETZNFNA 630,000 0.81 0.76 494
October 2009 —EZENF+ A 1,434,000 0.92 0.79 1,229
November 2009 —ZTNF+—A 128,000 0.92 0.90 116
January 2010 —ZE—Z4F—H 90,000 1.00 0.99 90
February 2010 —E—ZF — A 520,000 1.04 0.98 528
Total 45t 4,914,000 3.E18
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Further details of these transactions are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 27(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

As at 31 March 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$106,561,000, of which
HK$45,217,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
year after the reporting period. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$61,903,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 94.29% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
48.90%. The Group’s purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 29.93% of the Group’s purchases for
the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

48  Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 £ % %% B R 2 & | ANNUAL REPORT £ 2010

RER G ZE— S H BRI RERME5 ©

B EXAIREES - ARRHEERMBLRFF
AMERE  BOXHEARA ZEALHE

FR AR T&$%l2ﬁ1ﬁ“‘§bu$$/‘ B9
B RRM 27 (0) R AR EE K o

BEABRE—NN\—FREAFE  R-_T—F
F=ZA=1+—H ' ARRAIEIRZFHEEEL
106,561,000/ 7T © E #145,217,000/8 7T 5 F K
MEMERBEIRARGIE o 1IN KAT Z %
174 18 Bk 561,908,000 7T * AJ A B AR 25
KA -

REBEFE  AEBHAATFZHERELAE
BAFEAHERNI429%  MAPAREERY
RATFPZHERANEL48.90% - AEE AR
AEEBZEBRERAEEAFERBERL
29.93% °

B HEABMEAIREZMMAEELLF
EBHTRAERA L2 ERARBRRBEEHEG A
SERAXREPRMER 2 A ERES -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony SBS, J.P.
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

In accordance with articles 86(2) and 87 of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby and
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

The related party transactions as set out in note 32 to the financial
statements constitute connected transactions of the Company
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Apart from those contracts disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

M BIHRRM A2 WEEI  FR - KEFHE
ARRHEEFMBE AR AL B EAEEEG
BEABERZANT  LEEERIRAERFEXN

EFRHE -

R-ZZF—ZFF=ZA=1—H  BEARAREES
KB RDIEI2GAFEZERMAT  EF
MRARRKEREEE (ERRLEHF MEK
B (TE 2 R BB BA ) BXVER) Z A< 48 RE
BOOFEERE AR HRIBE LT RRESHE
TEHFR 2 FESTR (RETA]) AAE AR
RA) BRIz s RORBINT

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FERNBE « HRRERMEE

Through

spouse

Directly or minor

beneficially children

owned EBEBN

Name of director EE# % HEEEGES AEREFLZ

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey - 29,637,500
(Note 1) BREIE S & (FiEE1)

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen = 269,704,752
(Note 1) EFmA+ (FiE1)

Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby 28 &4 455,000 -

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 3,200,000 =

BRI X S A
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1] & 5% £ 1,000,000 -

Notes:

1. Mdm. Huang Hsin-duan, Helen is the spouse of Mr. Chen Ming-
hsiung, Mickey.

2. These shares represent 42.02% of the issued share capital of the
Company and are beneficially owned by King Strike Limited. The
issued share capital of King Strike Limited is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey as to 75.80%, Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen as to 22.07% and Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby as to
2.13%.

8 These shares represent 4.62% of the issued share capital of the
Company and are beneficially owned by Fat Tat Assets Limited,
which is in turn 100% beneficially owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen.
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Percentage

of the

Through Company’s

controlled issued capital

corporation Total {ARQAFRBET

iy e NG @t REZBS L

269,704,752 299,342,252 46.64
(Note 2) (PiiFE2)

29,637,500 299,342,252 46.64
(Note 3) (FiE3)

- 455,000 0.07

= 3,200,000 0.50

- 1,000,000 0.16

1. BEFEMRETRRGUELEZERR -

2. WEBRGBEARQREEITRAL42.02% @ HKing
Strike LimitedBm#EH RS E EF KK
+ Rl £ 5 BB A King Strike Limited 2
B TR A75.80% * 22.07% K%2.13% °

3. WERMMEARALDEITRAL62%  mFat
Tat Assets LimitedEzm#EH © MFat Tat Assets
Limited H EHiHZZ L100% E= A ©



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Number of
options directly
beneficially owned

BEEEREEZ
Name of Director EE# & BREHAR
Executive Directors: H{TEE :
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey F&R & 5t 4 2,150,000
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & & im %+ 580,000
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby Z= i 9t & 2,395,000
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian ] R4 7t £ 2,950,000
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu =12 #8 54 875,000
Non-executive Directors: FF#{TEE :
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony sBS, J.p. FIKIESAE » SEMEE - ATs+ 800,000
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel F&& S 9t 2,700,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: B FEHTES :
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 2 #t 1E f & 800,000
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P. BRECE oA - #88s - AFm+ 800,000
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven &K F/I 4 800,000

14,850,000

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial Br EiiESN ETESARAETERAREREKE
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the HEREMREARRBFEE THEB AR ER
benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with ELA P o

the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the BREXFI#EEEN RZE—TF=A=+—
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the B EFEMIEZLEBRERES LB EKRE
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any 352{KATER  IRBERESTAEANE A QR
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded M B ZZ BT 2 A B sk B AR A AR B VA B A% (D - RS

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to DK ES 2 ESEIOAE ©
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Apart from as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures
in note 26 to the financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in
note 26 to the financial statements.

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
on 3 June 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). The specific objectives of
the Share Award Scheme are to recognise the contributions of
certain employees of any member of the Group and to provide
them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

The Board may, from time to time, at its sole discretion select
any employee (the “Selected Employee”) of any member of
the Group for participation in the Share Award Scheme and
determine the number of awarded shares to be awarded to
the Selected Employees by taking into consideration matters
including (without limitation) the general financial condition of the
Group and the rank and performance of the relevant Selected
Employee. The Board is entitled to impose any conditions
(including a period of continued service within the Group after
the date of the final approval by the Board of the total amount
of shares to be awarded to the relevant Selected Employee on
a single occasion pursuant to the Share Award Scheme), as it
deems appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect to the
entitlement of the Selected Employee to the awarded shares.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to the
Selected Employee under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of the
10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date and such date of
early termination as determined by the Board.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 June 2010. No share was granted under
the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 31 March 2010.

As at 31 March 2010, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

By RE B AN KABMEHAFCAAES
SRERFRIEZ A (ARFEERE) KIE -

R REAEZHBHARARFABEHR-_E—F
FRAZHZRM -BE_T—TF=H=+—
B IEFE SRR SR E FT 81 BRI -

RZBE—ZEF=ZA=+—8 ' BEARFREEZESH
R A1 () E336 AT B 2 B B R AR
B A A R B BT IR R B 5% A b2 A+
mF -

Percentage of
the Company’s

Capacity Number of issued share
and nature ordinary capital
of interest shares held HARRARE #1T
Name &78 SO RERMEE FsEEREAE [ A=
King Strike Limited (Note) Beneficially owned 269,704,752 42.02
King Strike Limited (Ff&E) Enls
DJE Investment S.A. Investment Manager 63,376,000 9.87
REKIR
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc Investment Manager 45,794,000 714
and its associates WEKIE
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc
REBEA
Yeo Seng Chong Investor & & & 39,488,000 6.15
Lim Mee Hwa Investor & & 39,488,000 6.15

Note: The issued share capital of King Strike Limited is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, as to 75.80%, Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen as to 22.07% and Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby, as to
2.13%.

Bif3E : King Strike Limited 2 B3 /TR AR RS L £ &
mHEAT75.80%  HESBKZ T ERZHEF22.07%
FRERHLEEREF2.13% °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, BDO McCabe Lo Limited
(“BDQ”) resigned as auditors of the Company and Ernst & Young
were appointed by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy so
arising. Save as disclosed herein, there has been no other
changes of auditors in the past three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
Chairman

Hong Kong
19 July 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=z K

To the shareholders of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Kingmaker Footwear
Holdings Limited set out on pages 57 to 156, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

REEEXEEEARLT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

19 July 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

REVENUE Wz

Cost of sales #5%&ZA

Gross profit E7

Other income and gains, net E i Ug A K U355 %58
Distribution and selling costs 7 84 & $5& %
Administrative expenses 1TE R XX

Finance costs B4 X 7

PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR#t A Rl

Income tax expense FT5%F 2

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR Z<&E E 355

10

11

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
APAEEREAELERER
Basic &7

Diluted #%

13

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial

statements.
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1,289,684

(1,005,329)

284,355

11,858

(45,191)

(116,483)

(298)

134,241

(29,220)

105,021

HK16.43 cents &1L

HK16.24 cents &l

1,463,824

(1,269,941)

193,883

20,268

(46,197)

(107,813)

(242)

59,899

(6,702)

53,197

HK8.20 cents 71l

HK8.18 cents &1l

P B2 F BRI T AR I 1 24 58
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEE & F 105,021 53,197

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H fth 2 H ¥ £

Available-for-sale investments: ] it H &% & -
Changes in fair value A& &) 1,809 (1,280)
Realised loss/(gain) transferred to the income
statement on disposal of available-for-sale

investments
HE A SR AR S R R R Y
BRBAE, (i) 5 65 (106)
1,874 (1,386)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BMEBINSE R 2B X ERE 610 8,238
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
AEEHME2E KR 2,484 6,852
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
ERTEEEEARGFELEREASE 107,505 60,049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ RE&EE

Property, plant and equipment #0% - BiE M2 &

Prepaid land lease payments a1 £ 70 & 78
Investment properties & ¥

Deposits paid B4

Investments in club memberships € Fr& £1% &
Available-for-sale investments A] fit i &£ &

Total non-current assets FERENE E 4258

CURRENT ASSETS #AB&EE

Inventories 7 &

Accounts and bills receivable EUWBRIE K Z#%

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
TERRIE - B REMEKREIRE

Derivative financial instruments 74 & T A&

Tax recoverable B] Yg @718

Cash and cash equivalents 28 4& NSRS IER

Total current assets & E A%

CURRENT LIABILITIES KB & &
Accounts and bills payable E{f8RIE & ZiE
Accrued liabilities and other payables
JEFt B EREMENERIE
Tax payable JEfFi1E
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ &£ T A

Total current liabilities ;i Eh & (E42%8
NET CURRENT ASSETS HiBI & E FE
Net assets &&= FE

EQUITY #Ez=
Issued share capital & 31T
Reserves &

Total equity #zA2%E

Chen Ming-hsiung, MickeyPR 8
Director& %

14
15
16

18

19
20

23

21

22

23

25
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357,856
76,130
6,378
3,350
988
2,185

446,887

121,821
118,846

10,968
1,744
111
527,377

780,867

131,276

107,316
137,304
152

376,048
404,819

851,706

64,181
787,525

851,706

Wong Hei-chiuZEi#
Director& %

370,526
79,229
3,712
4,444
1,003
880

459,794

110,875
84,388

10,111
6,080
326
412,167

623,947

111,061

89,609
110,958
3,984

315,602

308,345

768,139

64,099
704,040

768,139
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At 1 April 2008 RZEZ\EMA-H 65,350 70,183 203 7872 46,399 916 547,212 738,140

Final 2008 dividend declared

BERZ-EEN\FEABRE - - - - - - (13,021) (13,021)
Total comprehensive income/(l0ss)

for the year

AEEREYE/(BE) 88 - - - - 8,238 (1,386) 53,197 60,049
Shares repurchased (notes 25 and 27)

ROk (Wiosker) (1,256) (7,250) 1,256 - - - (1,256) (8,506)
Interim 2009 dividend (note 12)

“ZENERYARE (HiE12) - - - - - - (9,729 (9,729

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 26)
B EREENRAZ A
7% (Woe) - - - 1,200 - - - 1,200

At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009
RZZENE=A=T-HR
“EENEMA-A 64,099 62,933" 1,459° 9,072" 54,637 (470" 576,409° 768,139

Final 2009 dividend declared

BERZZFENEERERE - - - - - - (15,974) (15974)
Total comprehensive income

for the year AFE 2 ENHAE - - - - 610 1874 10,021 107,505
Shares repurchased (notes 25 and 27)

BERG (Mi2sker) (491) (3,322) 491 - - - (491) (3,819
Issue of shares (note 25)

%*ﬁ &1 (Hfit2s) 573 2092 - - - - - 2,865

nterim 2010 dividend (note 1 )

:f ZEFPERE (M1 - - - - - - (10,216) (10,216)

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 26)
ANEREENRAT R 2

A (HiEo6) - - - 3,200 - - - 3,200
At 31 March 2010
R=8-5§=fA=+-H 64,181 61,903* 1,950* 12,272* 55,247* 1,404* 654,749* 851,706
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of - ZERBRAKGAMBRARNRZEE 1%
HK$787,525,000 (2009: HK$704,040,000) in the consolidated 787,525,000/8 7T (= FF /L% : 704,040,000/8
statement of financial position. JT) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REXBRERE
Profit before tax & i Al i 7
Adjustments for: &A% :
Finance costs g &Mk
Depreciation T8
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
BEFEN L ER0E
Impairment of accounts receivable F& U Bk T8 5 (B
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories
FERE (BEEE)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net
HEWE - BEKREIER BIEFE
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment
M~ BB KRR IE B
Write-off of goodwill B2 i $5
Amortisation of a club membership & Fff & £5# §4
Fair value loss/(gain) on revaluation of
investment properties
BHEEMEZ AFEEE (W)
Interest income F| 8 A
Dividend income % 24 A
Loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale
investments HE A HEERE 2 BB (M=)
Excess over the cost of business combinations
BB E A Of 2 B
Equity-settled share option expense
R AEE 2 BIRER X
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
EXFEH o B

Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R 4 (3&0)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and bills receivable
FEURBRTE R R A (3800)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
TBRFIE - e REAEUERTER A (35 n)
Decrease in derivative financial assets #7481 78 & 5 4
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and bills payable
FEATBRTE RGO A)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities
and other payables
FERT B fE R E b FEATBRIEIE N O )
Decrease in derivative financial liabilities
MEMBERERD
Cash generated from operations #& & f1153R &
Interest received 2 U #I 5
Interest paid & 72
Hong Kong profits tax paid B &#&FISH
Overseas taxes paid O & IMNH 18
Dividends paid & %8

Net cash flows from operating activities
REXB 2R REFHR
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134,241

298
43,100

2,130
5

11,696
1,105

602
15

(743)
(7,533)
(17)

65
3,200
(202)

187,962
(21,148)

(34,463)
(1,529)
4,336

19,707

15,770
(3,832)

166,803
7,533
(298)
(524)
(2,135)
(26,190)

145,189

59,899

242
43,158

2,089
(1,389)

88

521

14

598
(10,237)
(573)
(106)
(634)
1,200
(2,966)

91,904
28,288

82,624
6,167
9,325

(21,780)

(1,650)
(9,644)

185,134
10,237
(242)
(256)
(1,604)
(22,744)

170,525
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

RETHZ2RERE
Dividend received B Y% &8 17 573
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment

BEWE  WELRHBER 14 (31,234) (36,338)

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment

HEWE - BERREBEB SR 106 1,167
Deposit refunded/(paid) for acquisition of

a prepaid land lease payment

FUETEN T A EFEARE S (FT) & 2,268 (2,268)
Acquisition of prepaid land lease payments

WA LM E A - (1,320)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y& B A 7 28 (761) (3,500)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments

HERMEHEERE Z PA1EHKIA 504 299
Increase in available-for-sale investments

A SR A M - (573)
Deorease/(lnorease) in a structured deposit

ERBIEETORL (3En) - 11,700

Inorease in t|me deposits with original maturity of
over three months when acquired

BARREZ N =@ A 282 75138 M (116,230) (112,442)
Net cash flows used in investing activities

KREEYFARSREFE (145,330) (142,702)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

RMETBHRERE
Issue of shares 1T % 25 2,865 -
Repurchase of shares f&[=l {7 25 (3,813) (8,506)
New bank loans #3178 5 34,200 -
Repayment of bank loans E&iR1TE R (34,200) (1,121)

Net cash flows used in financing activities
MERDIARTREFR (948) (9,627)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERERARSEREN (RD) B8 (1,089) 18,196
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FRNZRERERREIAR 211,728 193,180
Effeot of foreign exchange rate changes, net
PEREE) 2 R EIFRR 69 352

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FRZz2ASRERRLER 210,708 211,728

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS BE& R ERBE BB #8254

Cash and bank balances I & K iRTT4 5% 21 91,755 102,776
Time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months JRE 2R =8 A 2 81,2 & 817 3K 21 118,953 108,952

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
GEReRERMBERCRERERRESIEE 210,708 211,728
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS k#RE&EE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB A 7 218 E& 17 67,190 67,190

CURRENT ASSETS #REI&EE

Due from subsidiaries FEU& [T & A 7 FIE 17 842,738 792,019
Other receivables H fh fE Uk 318 3 26
Cash and cash equivalents I & N5 R SIEE 21 18,742 17,030
Total current assets i EN & E LR 861,483 809,075

CURRENT LIABILITIES #E & f&
Accrued liabilities and other payables

EEraE R E A BRI 7,970 2,566
Due to subsidiaries FE{HIE 2 7 FIAE 17 673,836 640,211
Total current liabilities 7 & E 4258 681,806 642,777
NET CURRENT ASSETS B & EEE 179,677 166,298
Net assets & EFE 246,867 233,488
EQUITY #%H
Issued share capital & 21T 25 64,181 64,099
Reserves f# & 27(b) 182,686 169,389
Total equity #5485 246,867 233,488

Chen Ming-hsiung, MickeyR i Wong Hei-chiuZ=Ei
Director& % Director& %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture,
trading and retailing of footwear and menswear.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, derivative financial instruments and
available-for-sale investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2010. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intercompany transactions
and intercompany balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
This method involves allocating the cost of the business
combinations to the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
and HKAS 27 Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Amendments Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements — Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate
HKFRS 2 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Amendments Payment — Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations
HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(Revised)
HKAS 18 Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18
Amendment* Revenue — Determining whether an entity

is acting as a principal or as an agent
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs B g EA E=IZS
(Revised) 235 (K155])

HKAS 32 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial BEGER B ERIER 2T
and HKAS 1 Instruments: Presentation and HKAS FE32W R A ZIREAGE
Amendments 1 Presentation of Financial Statements B e ER ERFEVRGHHEZ

- Puttable Financial Instruments and 215 (185]) 25 - A EEzHBT
Obligations Arising on Liquidation AREBRELZAIL
Z1EET

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 &5 (BRyKRE B8 (BRIERE2E
and HKAS 39 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives REZEe) ZEg) - ZEFH
Amendments and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: —2EFHR B AN ITETA

Recognition and Measurement - k&S G LD REBGEERIE39
Embedded Derivatives £39%% (&3T) WEMITA - BRK
itE —BmAXTAET
AZEET
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes BE (BR%SRE EELAH7Z
REZE®)
— REBE13H
HK(FRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real &8 (BBRMBRE EHEZElE
Estate #EZE9)
—REE15%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign 5 (BBRMERE EI)EERELFHEH
Operation REZEY) P
- REBE16%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers B (BRBKRE (HEFEELE (K=
(adopted from 1 July 2009) REZE®) FENFHA—HE
- REE18% &)

Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs BB RS LR BHFE B iR EEL
to HKFRSs 2 U ZEET
(October 2008)™ ZETNFETH)

May 2009).

Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in

Y BRREBUBREE —FFENF
2 (R_ZTZNFRAEM) -

*x

The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued *x
in October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS

5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations - Plan to sell the controlling interest in a

subsidiary, which is effective for accounting period beginning

on 1 April 2010.

AEBRMNR _ZTZTN\F+HEMZ
TP ImE LR 2 2 EHGE - ER
“E-THENA-HEZEFHEE
W2 BB RE LR RO AFH EHH
ERHFIGERBZIHFRBEE —itd]
HE BN E 2 F]Z R 2 (EFT
BRAN

BRATEBEAEHENEIR (EERT)
RN B REENFETR (BF]) REFEH
B ELERNFSR 2 & 2 — TR
RN FH 5] MBI BB M B RE LR
BHLEFMNHERRENEAMBEE - LY
EH N EFMHERRAEA ZSGTHRERE

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of HKAS 1 (Revised), the HKFRS 7 Amendments and
HKFRS 8, the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements and there have been no significant changes
to the accounting policies applied in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
standard separate owner and non-owner changes in equity.
The statement of changes in equity includes only details of
transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in
equity presented as a single line. In addition, this standard
introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with
all items of income and expense recognised in profit or
loss, together with all other items of recognised income
and expense recognised directly in equity, either in one
single statement, or in two linked statements. The Group
has elected to present two statements.

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value
measurements related to items recorded at fair value are
to be disclosed by sources of inputs using a three-level
fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments
recognised at fair value. In addition, a reconciliation
between the beginning and ending balance is now required
for level 3 fair value measurements, as well as significant
transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The fair
value measurement disclosures are presented in note 34
to the financial statements.

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about
the components of the entity that is available to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. The standard also requires the disclosure
of information about the products and services provided
by the segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major
customers. The Group concluded that the operating
segments determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 are
the same as the business segments previously identified
under HKAS 14. These revised disclosures, including the
related revised comparative information, are shown in note
4 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, which have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements.

AR B RAE TS B A T 5 S B R 1
R A IR TR 46 TR A 5 2T B B T 9
EIB

HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
(Revised) Reporting Standards’
HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
Amendments of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards - Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters’
HKFRS 1 Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
Amendment of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards - Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters?
HKFRS 2 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Amendments Payment - Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions’
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations’
(Revised)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures?
(Revised)
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
(Revised) Statements’
HKAS 32 Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Amendment Instruments: Presentation — Classification of
Rights Issues’
HKAS 39 Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Amendment Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items’
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments?

Amendments to Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets

HKFRS 5 Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
included in - Plan to sell the controlling interest in a
Improvements subsidiary’
to HKFRSs
issued in
October 2008
HK Interpretation  Leases — Determination of the Length of
4 (Revised in Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land

December 2009)  Leases’

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements
to HKFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a number
of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2,
HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS
36, HKAS 39, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are
effective for the Group’s accounting period beginning
on 1 April 2010 although there are separate transitional
provisions for each standard or interpretation.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 and transition requirements
for amendments arising as a result of HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7, HKAS 1, HKAS 27, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are
effective for the Company’s accounting period beginning
on 1 April 2011.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 which sets out a collection of amendments
to HKFRSs in response to the International Accounting
Standards Board’s accounting improvements project.
HKFRS 1 (Revised), HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKFRS 7, HKAS 1,
HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for the Group’s
accounting period beginning on 1 April 2010 although there
are separate transitional provisions for each standard or
interpretation.

! Effective for accounting period beginning on 1 April 2010

2 Effective for accounting period beginning on 1 April 2011

8 Effective for accounting period beginning on 1 April 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that except for
the adoption of HKAS 24 (Revised) may result in new or
amended disclosures; the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised)
and HKAS 27 (Revised) may result in changes in accounting
policies; and the adoption of HKFRS 9 may result in new or
amended disclosures and changes in accounting policies;
these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as an asset,
initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries
(previously referred to as negative goodwill), after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset or as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 10% to 25%

Machinery, furniture, 10% to 25%

equipment and motor

vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred
in connection with the construction of property, plant
and equipment less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investments in club memberships

The useful lives of club memberships are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Club memberships with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the club memberships may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for club
memberships with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such club memberships are
not amortised. The useful life of a club membership with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement
in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If
a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is dealt with as movements in
the asset revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, accounts and bills receivable, other receivables,
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policy set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether
the intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate.
When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell
them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. The reclassification from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables or
available-for-sale financial assets depends on the nature
of the assets.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
the income statement. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the income statement in administrative
expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
valuation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement in other income, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement in other
operating expenses and removed from the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve. Dividends earned are reported
as dividend income and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policy
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near
term are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification
to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial
assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and the
Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for
the foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to the
held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity
has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of
the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss
over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

U the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
income statement, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. The determination of what is “significant”
or “prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value
has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the income statement — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and
bills payable, other payables and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in “Finance
costs” in the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any
deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value is determined
using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques
include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, e.g.
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated and effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current
or separated into a current or non-current portion based
on an assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the
underlying contracted cash flows).

. Where the Group will hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a
period beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, the derivative is classified as non-current (or
separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying
item.

. Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract are classified consistently with the
cash flows of the host contract.

. Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistent
with the classification of the underlying hedged item.
The derivative instruments are separated into current
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation
can be made.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

U where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue recognition Wz rER
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic W 25 AN 52 (3] 1% T JE 15 A8 M) 2 2 3z i 2 B
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can Al SEMbETERIR T EERRZALR ¢

be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks @ HEERBSUERERZEBRE
and rewards of ownership have been transferred mEBRLKEREEETEHEER

CEAEEAHZEEREBLE
2 Eﬁﬁcﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁéz B MEE

associated with ownership, nor effective control over EEMBETABRIEHE

the goods sold;

to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains

th%’ﬁ

neither managerial involvement to the degree usually

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the (o) MEWARBELFHIZEBELAIA
lease terms; iR

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the () FBUA @ RIBEBRFRIZETEE
effective interest rate method by applying the rate that AR i B 7 B E TR et F HE A M T oK
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through RIBEWAFTHFEM K EERDF
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net B &

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to (d) B BURA P RR RIS PR 2 R L
receive payment has been established. A ALR o

Related parties BEEAL

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHBERAT —FABEEAELAERS

w4

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more () —FHEEXBEESA—HIALMHN
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under Mg - ()32 I AN B sl AN E BT
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in SEAEETHRIES (R AEEH
the Group that gives it significant influence over the BEREGFHEEUAERTFEERY
Group; or (i) has joint control over the Group; 2 S(iNE A E B HA K RIEH

T

(b) the party is an associate; (o) —HREERE:

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity; () —HABEREHAQ

(d) the party is a member of the key management (@ — E BASEECEFEEEBABZK

o

personnel of the Group;

\
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related parties (continued)

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using an
appropriate pricing model, further details of which are given
in note 26 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.
All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are
treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart
from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Provision for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged analysis at
the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group makes impairment of accounts receivable
based on an assessment of the recoverability of accounts
receivable. Allowances are applied to accounts and bills
receivable where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have impact on the carrying value of
the receivables and doubtful debt expenses/write-back in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their business activities and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) manufacturing and sale of footwear products; and

(b)  retailing and wholesaling business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax except that interest income, finance costs and other
unallocated income and unallocated expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and TEEBE_E-—SER-_EENE=A

certam, asset, I!ab|l|ty and expenditure information for the SO RSB E S IS -
Group’s operating segments for the years ended 31 March

Group AEH

Segment revenue: 7 &K
Sales to external customers

HETHAER 1,271,578 1,450,219 18,106 13,605 1,289,684 1,463,824
Intersegment sales A fBfEHE 2,207 - 316 - 2,523 -
Total £t 1,273,785 1,450,219 18,422 13,605 1,292,207 1,463,824
Elimination of intersegment sales

NI E (2,523) -
Total #5t 1,280,684 1,463,824
Segment results 2 E¥£%E 154,952 64,962 (22,771) (14,361) 132,181 50,601
Unallocated income and gains, net

AABWA R T8 946 3,655
Interest income F|2MA 7,533 10,237
Unallocated expenses A7 B H X (6,121) (4,352)
Finance costs B &R (298) (242)
Profit before tax B A% H 134,241 59,899
Income tax expense FT{SFi X (29,220) (6,702)

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company
RRAEERAARGEFEEN 105,021 53,197

Assets and liabilities EER &1

Segment assets D BEE 666,250 651,535 23,668 8,976 689,918 660,511
Unallocated assets A B EE 537,836 423,230
Total assets B E £ 1,227,754 1,083,741
Segment liabilities 58 & 216,467 184,933 4,197 1,729 220,664 186,662
Unallocated liabilities &2 & & & 155,384 128,940
Total liabilities & E# 4 376,048 315,602
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group TEE

Other segment information:

Bt 5 BEH :
Depreciation: 17%& :
Segment 7 %8 41,234 42,271 1,866 824 43,100 43,095
Unallocated &7 - 63
43,100 43,158
Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments:
BHEN T RENE
Segment 54 2,130 2,064 - - 2,130 2,064
Unallocated &7 f¢ - 25
2,130 2,089

Capital expenditure: EAFI :
Segment 748 29,470 36,421 1,764 3,604 31,234 40,025
Unallocated R 7Bz - -

31,234 40,025
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Geographical information HEER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KENEEFHWKZ
The United States of America £ 659,142 737,320
Europe BUM 534,868 613,372
Other countries E B 95,674 113,132
1,289,684 1,463,824
The revenue information above is based on the iR ER AR P RER AR

location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets (b) HREEZE
Hong Kong &8 29,339 28,916
Mainland China 1 B Ay, 298,994 305,120
Cambodia RIf2E 39,156 38,157
Vietnam #F 76,695 84,063
Other countries £ B 2,703 3,538

446,887 459,794

The non-current asset information above is based on FHERBEEERNEEME A
the location of assets. i o

Information about major customers FEEFZEHR

Revenue of HK$630,616,000 (2009: HK$676,711,000), I #¥ #9630,616,0008 T (= T T A

HK$326,914,000 (2009: HK$381,440,000) and F : 676,711,000/ JT) ~ 326,914,000

HK$192,535,000 (2009: HK$234,432,000) was derived B oL (Z & T L F :381,440,000%

from sales to three customers of the Group, respectively. JL) }&192,535,000%8 T (Z T T N F -

The above amounts include sales to a group of entities 234,432,000/ L) DRIREAEE =8%

which are known to be under common control with these FRHEE LB RER—HETE (X5

customers. TR FMRPRRIZES) AHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents WEMATEEZEEE  BHRRERES
the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods sold, FHEMEEEm2ERFEEN - WEK
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and after HEBNARMZIRS °

eliminations of intra-group transactions.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as Was ~ Ha A R FE AT -
follows:

Group TEH

Revenue Wz

Sale of goods HEE @ 1,289,684 1,463,824

Other income and gains, net E U A & W3 F 58

Bank interest income R17FI B UA 4,622 6,499
Interest income from accounts receivable FEUYERIEF] 2 A 2,911 3,738
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments

PTHEemI A N FEKE 2,196 5,159
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment

HEWE  BENEREER BB (1,105) (88)
Fair value gain/(loss) on revaluation of investment properties

EEEREMEZ AFERS /(EB) 743 (598)
Gross rental income A& U A 4258 553 300
Foreign exchange differences, net [& X = 58 /5E 211 3,928
Gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale investments

EEMHEERE 2 W/ (EE) (65) 106
Dividend income A% B A 17 573
Excess over the cost of business combinations B8 %154 #f 2 B AR - 634
Write-off of goodwill &2 i 34 (602) -
Others E A 2,377 17

11,858 20,268

Group KEH

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years
ARAFRNEBEEZRITERZHE 298 242
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBZBBATRFITENE (5 A)
(crediting): TIER :
Group AEE

Cost of inventories sold & F & KA
Depreciation #r&
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
BIETEN T ERIE
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories
FEEE (BERE)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases
for land and buildings
T REFZEEENIA T 2 HIERNES
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net LEWE - BEMRZEIEE BEFE
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment
W - BB &R EE B MHE
Write-off of goodwill 7524 £
Impairment of accounts receivable f&UBRIE E(E
Auditors’ remuneration #Z £t Efi B &
Employee benefit expense
(including directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
EERAAX (BIEEEME (MIzE8)):
Wages and salaries T& N & &
Equity-settled share option expense LAREZR 45 & v B IR 2
Pension scheme contributions R K& 5T 8

Amortisation of a club membership & Fr & £5# $4

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments
PTTHEeMmI Az AT EKE

Fair value loss/(gain) on revaluation of investment properties
BHEEEMEZ ATFEEBE(KES)

Loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale investments
HEMHEEREZEE ()

Bank interest income &7 B U A

Interest income from accounts receivable FEURERZ~ Il 28U A

Foreign exchange differences, net [& 7, = %8 % (&

Dividend income B84 A

Excess over the cost of business combinations
FRIREE A O 2 AR

Net rental income SH#F £ UA
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687,474
43,100

2,130

11,696

15,129

1,105

602

1,280

280,206
3,200
7,597

291,003

15

(2,196)

(743)

65
(4,622)
(2,911)
(211)
(17)

(439)

906,389
43,158

2,089

(1,389)

10,641

88

521

1,280

290,234
1,200
9,456

300,890



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cost of sales includes HK$242,561,000 (2009:
HK$275,943,000) relating to direct staff costs and
depreciation of manufacturing facilities, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above
for each of these types of expenses.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is
as follows:

Group

Fees &

- Independent non-executive directors — B IFTTE S

— Non-executive directors — FJEITE S

Other emoluments: E B4 :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - 286 R EWH

Discretionary bonuses BF 484
Pension scheme contributions :EA & 5t 2|tk

Equity-settled share option expense MAREZS A8 E 7 BERRAERT 2

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the income statement, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.

104 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 £ % £ @AR 2 & | ANNUAL REPORT 4] 2010

HWERABEBAREEE IR AREE
3 & 242,561,000/ 7T (:E?—Sﬂi :
275,943,000 L) - 2B E R A L#
BRBeE s SEAZA -

FR EEWSRBEBHAISNERA
RIFEAHEWARA ([ EMRA)) REBRA
IEHIE161IEETENT

AEH

540 540
540 180
1,080 720
6,512 5,993
3,541 1,822
24 13
622 211
10,699 8,039
11,779 8,759

FR BETESEARRBREASZT
RIBEHANEE 2 RGER TRAGE  E—
B I AN B B AR KT EE26 - ERIRA
BERERAZZEBREZAFERKLBEH
BE  MEBaRANFRHRR 2 BBEAHR
N EEHMWELD 2R -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAIFBTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRANTBIERTES 2R N
during the year were as follows: o
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 3Bt IE %t 4 180 36 216
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul BRI% ¥ 5t 4 180 36 216
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
HFIRE 180 36 216
540 108 648
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny B I %t £ 180 14 194
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul BRI & 7t & 180 14 194
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
RFITHRE 180 14 194
540 42 582
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRLEEMENBIIENTEE Y
independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZTEENEFE - |) o
(2009: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors

Executive directors:

BITES:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey

REUES & -
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

EARAT -
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby

Filxh -
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

ARERE -
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

BEELE -

Non-executive directors:

FHTES

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel

B E 360

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony

Bxigxs 180
540
540
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2,520

900

601

1,291

1,200

6,512

6,512

(b)

2,038

440

608

325

100

3,511

30

30

3,541

HITESRFEBTES
- 66
- 24
- 108
- 108
12 92
12 398
12 80

- 36
12 116
2 514

4,624

1,364

1,317

1,724

1,404

10,433

482

216

698

11,131



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITEBRIFITES ()
directors (continued)

Executive directors:

HITES:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey

BREEEE - 2,520 778 - - 3,293

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

EARAT - 900 217 - 10 1,187

Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby

FMEE - 633 399 - 44 1,076

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel*

REX S - 565 50 12 40 667

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

MRERE - 1,310 323 - 44 1,677

Mr Wong Hei-Chiu

EE#LE - 50 - 1 17 68

- 5,978 1,822 13 165 7,968
Non-executive directors:

K978

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel*

W - 15 - - - 18

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony

K% E 180 - - - 14 194
180 15 - - 14 209
180 5,993 1,822 13 169 8,177

* REXEETBETHTESLE

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel ceased to be an executive

director and was redesignated as a non-executive FHAPTEE BT NF=A
director with effect from 16 March 2009. FNBRER -
There was no arrangement under which a director EEMERFRNE LERZTHME
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during IEAEREAANE (ZEZENEF :
the year (2009: Nil). &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The five highest paid employees during the year included FRN - hEEaHREERERG (ZEZAN
five (2009: four) directors, details of whose remuneration F:0%) BEE - AP BEHN LM
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of 8N Efp—RIFEEHESFHEE M
the remaining one non-director, highest paid employee for SFEBEOT

the last year are as follows:

Group rEE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & « 2 R EYF = - 801
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate EBNEBTIIRBF AR BB (A5 &
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable B F 216.5% (ZEZE NLF : 16.5%)
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on ZIEEE - A m B RERT RN 2
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at REDRAEBRKEERMERR 8%
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in R ZBITED - REREMIZE R R
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, "o

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Group: &AM
Current — Hong Kong BNEAFE 1B — &8

Charge for the year ARFE 1B H 1,294 156
Current — Elsewhere BIHAT:IE — Efth &
Charge for the year AFEFHIEL H 32,700 13,752
Overprovision in prior years &7t 4 & B8 R (4,774) (7,200)
Total tax charge for the year ARG SR IEF = %8 29,220 6,702
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate
is as follows:

Group

Profit before tax B &1 Bia F

Tax at the applicable tax rate 1R E AT R+ & 2 HiIA
Lower tax rate for specific provinces
or enacted by local authorities
FFEE D E BRI BIED X
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years
BEFEHIEMX AR
Income not subject to tax HERBILA
Expenses not deductible for tax A 0 2 AL
Tax losses not recognised KR IAE 18

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate
BRAEEERBERFE 2 HIBRAX

The applicable tax rate is calculated based on the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%), the Vietnam
Corporate Tax rates of 10% to 28% (2009: 10% to 28%),
the Cambodia Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2009: 20%),
the Taiwan Corporate Tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%), the
preferential tax rates in Mainland China ranging from 20%
to0 25% (2009: 18% to 25%) and the respective tax holidays
granted to the subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China,
Vietham and Cambodia.
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BARBREWBRRAEBRR OEERER
HEEAR R AN A 2 A IR BT
MEFFE MBS HERMT

rEE

134,241 59,899
33,361 15,360
(9,827) (6,151)
(4,774) (7,206)
(31) (621)
5,577 2,150
4,914 2,170
29,220 6,702

BABERBEEERNGHHE16.5% (ZF
TNEF 16.5%) BELEBRRE10%ZE
28% (ZZETNF  10%E28%) « KI5
PEHE20% (ZEZNF  20%) - A&
TEBBEER (ZTTNF 1 25%) +
BEEEHENT20%E25% 2B (ZEEN
F:18%E25%) RAKEHRIAFE -
MERRBEZHBARMES B2 BT

st
H o
o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In general, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
which were subject to the People’s Republic of China’s
corporate income tax at the rate of 33% before 31
December 2007, are subject to the rate of 25% after the
effective date of the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China on 1 January 2008, except for
certain subsidiaries which are entitled to tax holidays and
preferential tax rates.

Pursuant to the New PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends
expected to be distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008, the directors have made assessment based
on the factors which included dividend policy and the level
of capital and working capital required for the Group’s
operations in the foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2010, there were no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities (2009: Nil) for withholding taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the
Company’s subsidiaries expected to be distributed, after
considering the abovementioned factors, in the foreseeable
future.

The Group has estimated deferred tax assets of
approximately HK$13,803,000 (2009: HK$8,889,000)
calculated on tax losses arising in Hong Kong that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is considered
not probable that the Group can utilise these losses in the
foreseeable future.
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—RME  AREZFBEMNBEARBRHE
33% (R—FFLF+-A=+—HUH)
B EARKEMBECEMER - BHAKRN
25% (MAPEARKMBEEEMAFREE
Mz H (BIZTFBNF—A—HARR)) &t
hEARAMBEEEMSEY - HEETHEBR
AIER I BB R ARRSN -

RIBPBFEE - R BRI 2 INE D
XM EET IR 2R EFHEEU10%
TEHR - ZHRER_ZTENF—A—HEE
B WEARZEELFTA=1+—H%
EEZEF - WP RN ERINRIEEE B
ALERER 2 BRI IS EL - BIRT R AR
ZTEMBLE o TE(EEHZE R B AK 7 B &
REZEENF—A—BREENRFTE
HREEAR B AT MR TEIIRE - EEE A
BRREBRRASEEBEE RRRAE
BRAREEESERE -

R-TE-FTF=ZA=1+—H LEELHERA
Ei& - ERARARK  WEBNARFMNBEL
FITRHR R ARERE R EMFAMH AN &
ARAERELHERE (ZFTTNF &) -

AEBZHAEEHRBEEENR
13,803,000% 7t (=T T N1 4 : 8,889,000
BIL)  NRBERBREG ZHBEE R
B ZEEEAERAREEEESER L
RAJARERBGN - ARNZEMNBAT—
BEHSEE  AAKEER RBRERZSE
BIEZ AR K - ML B A B IR RER
ELRAEE °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the HE_Z—ZEF=-A=+—HLFE
Company for the year ended 31 March 2010 includes a AR EEREABEFEERANA
profit of HK$37,317,000 (2009: HK$45,930,000) which has = F37,317,000%8 T (= T T h F:
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company 45,930,000 70) * ER AR A BB |REK
(note 27(b)). (BF3E27(0)) FIBK ©

Dividends paid during the year FFRE A% &

Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2009 - HK2.5 cents per ordinary share
(2009: final dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary
share, in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2008)
HEEFBRFE LR RHARE
:%%ﬂizﬁ =+—H - gREERKR2.5%5(l

—EENF  REE_ZT 7)\$ RA=+—H1

MRFE - REPKREEREBER2E) 15,974 13,021

Interim — HK1.6 cents (2009: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share
RH — BREREKR.6BIL (ZZEZAF - 1.5581l) 10,216 9,723
26,190 22,744

Proposed final dividend HK7.0 cents (2009: HK2.5 cents)
per ordinary share

BRAR B ZIR L @ER7.0B W (ZETNF - 2.5811) 45,217 15,974
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the REZRIRARHAREBESRRFRERRH
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming B ZRRBFRE LHER - FAEE -
annual general meeting. These financial statements do not It B TS R 3R I R R M R AR B, o

reflect the dividend payable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$105,021,000 (2009: HK$53,197,000) and
the weighted average of 639,177,935 (2009: 648,930,029)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$105,021,000 (2009: HK$53,197,000) and
646,604,892 (2009: 650,254,770) ordinary shares, being
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year, adjusted for the effects of the dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares
used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
is as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating basic earnings per share
ARG ESRERRB N 2 L@ INHE T2

Weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on deemed
exercise of all dilutive options outstanding during the year
FRARIERITEREARTEAEEBEREMRREEETZ
TBAR N RE T E 8

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating diluted earnings per share

AR EGREER N 2 EaR T2
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BREABFDIBERNFE AR ARDE
B AEML R FHEH105,021,0008 7w (=ZF
ZNAF : 53,197,000 7T) RFAREBETE
PN AE 15 #639,177,9350% (—ZEZ h
4 : 648,930,029 ) & o

BEREERBANIBBEAFERRFERTEAR
A JEAG 2 5 7)105,021,0008 70 (Z 2 F
JLEF £ 53,197,000 70) REFAEEITE
EEEEAR e EBEHRARECFANDE
77 3 A% hN 4 - 9 £0646,604,892% (=&
T ¢ 650,254,7700%) 5T E -

R E SRR RIS R IR 15 R T
BBBEMT

639,177,935 648,930,029
7,426,957 1,324,741
646,604,892 650,254,770



Group

Cost: B :
At beginning of year R 1]
Additions RE

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 28)
W EEHT A &) (M13E28)

Disposals &

Transfer to investment properties (note 16)
EEEEYE (Mis16)

Transfers 84

Exchange realignment SN F &

At 31 March 2010
W=ZE-FE=A=+—A

Accumulated depreciation: 2% :
At beginning of year R ]
Provided during the year 5 A&
Disposals &
Transfer to investment properties
(note 16) W =K EWE (H:E16)

Exchange realignment M F8%

At 31 March 2010
RZE—ZEF=A=+—H

Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 March 2010
R-E—ZEF=A=+—H

At 31 March 2009
R-ZFFAE=A=1—H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

415,473
3,264

(1,260)
23,857
712

442,046

147,222
19,584

(421)
267

166,652

275,394

268,251

rEE

9,123 294,583 719,179
15,951 12,019 31,234
- 595 595
- (2,988) (2,988)
- - (1,260)
(24,709) 852 -
22 525 1,259
387 305,586 748,019

- 201,431 348,653

- 23,516 43,100

- (1,777) (1,777)

- - (421)

- 341 608

- 223,511 390,163

387 82,075 357,856
9,123 93,152 370,526
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group AEE

Cost: B ¢
At beginning of year A& 4] 404,394 - 267,500 671,894
Additions RE 699 9,123 26,516 36,338
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 28)

W EEHT B A | (FMf3E28) - - 562 562
Disposals & - - (6,409) (6,409)
Written off #fi$4 - - (776) (776)
Exchange realignment 4NE& 7% 10,380 - 7,190 17,570
At 31 March 2009
RZZETZNF=A=+—AH 415,473 9,123 294,583 719,179

Accumulated depreciation: K&T#TE
At beginning of year I & 4] 125,369 - 177,431 302,800
Provided during the year R 18,425 - 24,733 43,158
Disposals & - - (6,154) (5,154)
Written off #fi$4 - - (255) (255)
Exchange realignment 4N& F2 3,428 - 4,676 8,104
At 31 March 2009
RZZEZNF=A=+—AH 147,222 - 201,431 348,653
Net book value: BRI R {E :
At 31 March 2009
RZEZENF=A=+—H 268,251 9,123 93,152 370,526
At 31 March 2008
RZBEZENF=ZA=1+—H 279,025 - 90,069 369,094
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s land included above is analysed as follows:

Freehold land held outside Hong Kong
BB LASIMEE R H 2 K AL

Group

Carrying amount at beginning of year I E 4] 2 BRE{&

Additions NE

Transfer to investment properties (note 16)
EEEEYZE (H5E16)

Amortised during the year FA 4 R $4

Exchange realignment FME F8%

Carrying amount at 31 March ®R=A=+—H Z2EAE
Current portion included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

FIATERFRIA ~ 1RE R HE M REYKRIA 2 BNEAEE

Non-current portion FEENEAER

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments are held under
the following lease terms:

Held in Hong Kong under medium term leases
REEREPHEOFE
Held outside Hong Kong under medium term leases

REBEBRIMEEREFTBEOFE
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AREEz bt At

8,324

EX

81,382

(1,084)
(2,130)
92

78,260

(2,130)

76,130

8,324

78,398
3,687

(2,089)
1,386

81,382

(2,153)

79,229

AEE BN LA S RIBR T 5 HEF

g

15,995

62,265

78,260

16,444

64,938

81,382



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group

Fair value at beginning of year R E# 2 A&

Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 14)
EREEME - WEKRE (Mizt14)

Transfer from prepaid land lease payment (note 15)
g AN A ERIE (FHFE15)

Fair value gain/(loss) on revaluation Eff A EW S, (EiE)

Fair value at 31 March R=A=+—HZA¥E

The Group’s investment properties are situated outside
Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 March 2010 by Castores Magi (Hong Kong)
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$6,378,000 on an open market, existing use basis.

Company

Unlisted shares, at cost 3 AR » &R A
Due from subsidiaries F& WP E A 7708
Due to subsidiaries F&{f M B A FIFIAE

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the
Company’s current assets and current liabilities are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.
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rEE

3,712 4,310
839 -
1,084 -
743 (598)
6,378 3,712

REBZREMRUNREBRIN  RPHHE
OESE oI

R-_FB—FF-_A=1—0 XEEZRE
MERBLIEXAERMGEEMRE (BF)
BRARRARMS  RITAGEEELR
6,378,000/ 7T °

67,190 67,190
842,738 792,019
(673,836) (640,211)
236,092 218,998

FEA AP B8 A R BRI RT AR R B2
BEELARBAR  HSEEN 2ENRA
RIBHEFEE



Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Directly held E##&H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FBHBATZEENT

MJ Haig Industries Limited*  British Virgin Ordinary 100 Sourcing of
EEBBRERO AR AR Islands/Taiwan US$10,000 raw materials
REBHERR =g iEliba for footwear
BHs A 10,000 7T REBES
EmRE
Ready Luck Limited British Virgin Ordinary 100 Investment
Islands US$5,000 holding
EEEBRES IR KEZRR
5,000% 7T
Indirectly held BiZ#&HE
Discovery Star Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 Property
Development Limited BE TERET holding
MEZERBR DA BB
Kingmaker (Vietnam) Vietnam US$15,000,000 100 Subcontracting
Footwear Co., Ltd. fiigea] 15,000,000 7T of footwear
B2 2% (#im) BIRAA MIEREm
Lightening Star Corporation  British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 Investment
EBERMAHE Us$1,000 holding
R KEBER
1,000% 7T
Maystar Footwear People’s Republic US$43,000,000 100 Footwear
Company Limited of China/Mainland (Note (a)) manufacturing
(“Maystar”) China 43,000,000 7T SEERE®D
EEHEER A hEE ARFME (M7 (a))
(I=£1) B A i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows
(continued):

Indirectly held (continued)
BERFE (&)

Miri Footwear British Virgin Ordinary US$1
International Inc. Islands/Mainland TmAR13ET
China
HREEBRES
R B AT b,
Miri International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
BREBEREZROHBRAR BE TRAR2E T
Profit Success Investment Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited EB HK$1,000
MEXREFR LA IR
1,000/ 7T

Kingmaker Footwear
(Zhong Shan) Co.,
Ltd. (“Kingmaker
Zhong Shan”)
g2 88 (i) BRAR]
(MEE2F 1L ])

People’s Republic US$30,000,000

of China/ (Notes (a), (b))
Mainland 30,000,000% 7T
China (Mi3E(a) * (b))
REARKEMA

o A
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TEMBARZFBEMOT : (&)

100 Sourcing of
raw materials
for footwear and
footwear trading
REBEHRERD
HEEmM

100 Provision of
administrative
services

RHITBURYS

100 Investment
holding
EER

100 Footwear
manufacturing

HEEEREM



Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

(continued):

Indirectly held (continued)

MiERHE (&)

Sanford Resources
Limited

Transcommerce
International Inc.

Victory Universal
Corporation

Kingstar (Jiangxi)
Footwear Limited
(“Kingstar Jiangxi”)

2 OIf) EXAR QA

(ME21E])

Future Bright
Development Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

British Virgin
Islands/
Vietnam
KBHRRES
g

British Virgin
Islands/
Mainland
China
RBERRES
HR B A

British Virgin
Islands/
Mainland China
KEgEBRnEs
Hh B A3

People’s Republic
of China/
Mainland China
hEEAREME
A

British Virgin
Islands

RBERBRES
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Ordinary US$1
LBAR1ETT

Ordinary US$1
L@l

Ordinary US$1
TmR13ET

Us$8,610,000
(Notes (a), (c)
8,610,000% 7T
(fiz¥@) * (c)

Ordinary US$1
TR 1ETT

100

100

100

100

100

TEMBARZFBEMOT : (&)

Trading of
footwear
products

BEEEBEM

Sourcing and
trading of
raw materials
for footwear
KBEREE
ERERREY

Trading of
footwear
products

EEEREM

Footwear
manufacturing

EEEREM

Trading of
footwear
products

BEEEREM



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

(continued):

Indirectly held (continued)
BERE (&)

Kingmaker (Cambodia)
Footwear Co., Ltd.
Il 2 2% (SRIHE)
AR AR

Opal Star International
Holdings Limited
EEEBEZERBER AR

Star (1) Limited

EEMNBRAR

FRD Worldwide Limited?
S84 ORI ARAFN

WEIBEZAR A

BIMERESH

REBRAF]

Kingdom of
Cambodia
RIFETEH

British Virgin
Islands
REABARES

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

People’s Republic
of China/
Mainland China
REARILME
R E A

People’s Republic
of China/
Mainland China
REARLRE
FEIRH

Ordinary
US$1,000,000
B
1,000,000% 7T

Ordinary US$1
HBRIET

Ordinary
HK$100
LBAR10078 7T

Ordinary
HK$10,000
i
10,000 7T

RMB2,000,000
(Note (a))
AR
2,000,0007T
(B5E(a))

HK$260,000
(Note (a))
260,000/ 7T
(M¥5E(a))
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100

100

100

100

100

100

TEMBARZFBEMOT : (F)

Footwear
manufacturing

EESEEM

Investment
holding
HEER

Retailing of
footwear
products
TEEEEM

Investment
holding
WEER

Trading and
manufacturing
of footwear
products
BEEREE
HHEEM

Retail of
clothing and
fashionable
goods
TERE
¥ 10 22 o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows FEMBRABIZFHBNOT : (&)
(continued):

Indirectly held (continued)
BERE (&)

L RE B EE R People’s Republic US$1,000,000 100  Retail of
= RS)EUNG] of China/ (Note (a)) clothing and
Mainland China 1,000,0003 7T fashionable
REARLME (FtzE(a) goods
B A TERER
¥ 19 E
FIN Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Trading of
BE 10,0007 7T clothing and
fashionable
goods
BEERERK
BF 0 E
Notes: 5 -
(a)  These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned (a) ZEMBAAREBEFEAEZMAINGE
enterprises under the law of the People’s Republic of B
China.
(b)  The registered capital of Kingmaker Zhong Shan was fully (o) JEEFLZAMERERERNGE

contributed during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes: (continued)

(c)  The registered capital of Kingstar Jiangxi amounted to
US$11,920,000 at 31 March 2010. Accordingly, the Group
had commitments in respect of the remaining unpaid capital
contribution of US$3,310,000 (equivalent to HK$25,818,000)
at the end of the reporting period (note 31(ii)).

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

# During the year, the Group acquired FRD Worldwide Limited
and its subsidiaries from an independent third party. Further
details of the acquisition are included in note 28 to the
financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Group

Hong Kong listed investments, at fair value
FELHRE  BATE

During the year, the fair value gain of the Group’s
available-for-sale equity investments recognised directly in
equity amounted to approximately HK$1,809,000 (2009:
loss of HK$1,280,000).

The fair values of the listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices.
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MsE - (#)

() ER-_ZE-ZTE=-A=+—BZIEMER
#$11,920,000% 7T At - AEER®E
AR BEE 82 N AR ST H & #EAHE3,310,000
% v (#H & $25,818,000%8 ) (K &
31(ii)) °

* WIBEBL KGN EBH AR L KEE
FhEIREm 2 8 B RAIER

# RERN > AEEBRBYE =T KESEH
(BI) ARARREAMBAR - E=ER
ZHE— BRI IR KM 28

EEMRA ERMIIARRTEAFER
BHERAEBEEFEERID ZANRA
TEMERR c EERREIEMMB AR
HIEHEEFHERITE

FEH

2,185 880
RER  BEERBAERZ AEEATHEE

AR E 2 A FEWEL A1,809,000/%8 7T
—ETHF ¢ F5I81,280,00087T) °

EHERE 2R HEDRMSHRENE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group

Raw materials R4k}
Work in progress & &
Finished goods &6 i

Group

Accounts and bills receivable FEUBRIE & Zig
Impairment J&{&

The Group’s accounts and bills receivable mainly related
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. Payment
terms with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are
normally payable within 90 days of issuance, except for
certain well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to 180 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk, including certain accounts receivable covered by
credit insurance. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s senior management. Accounts receivable
are non-interest-bearing, except for a balance due from
a customer of approximately HK$89,598,000 (2009:
HK$30,514,000) which bears interest at a rate of 0.5% for
a fixed period of 60 days.
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TEE
59,327 59,028
14,439 13,042
48,055 38,805
121,821 110,875
TEE
121,144 86,681
(2,298) (2,293)
118,846 84,388

AEBvEKEEREREZZERDH NS
LEGBZEPEMB - B TREP 2K
REZREEFN  -BREREEBERRL
ZETEPAIRELEFZE180H NEHKIN -
—REFPZEFIAIHE - AEEBITE
BESIRKE 2 BKRERTE - LUREEER
% BIEA TUEERBIELRE 2 EKE
B RN RERASERSRERERT
HEZ BREBEBTFE  E—UEPX
2 858 #189,598,000/8 7T (ZTTNF ¢
30,514,000 7T) #Z05B 2 BREFHE -
BT B EIA AR60H o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the date of
goods delivered, is as follows:

Group

Within 90 days 90H A
Between 91 and 180 days 91 H&180H
Between 181 and 365 days 181 HZ=365H

Over 1 year —F A E

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts
and bills receivable are as follows:

Group

At beginning of year 4]
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B MR EEE (B:E7)

At 31 March ®R=A=+—H

Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts
and bills receivable is a provision for individually impaired
trade receivables of HK$2,298,000 (2009: HK$2,293,000)
with a gross carrying amount of HK$2,298,000 (2009:
HK$2,293,000). The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.
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NEMRBRASERE - BERELEER
BERARZREDTAT :

rEE

118,788 84,388
9 -

17 -

32 -
118,846 84,388

ERERELREBE CREREZHH I W
T

rEME

2,293 2,293
5 -
2,298 2,293

STA LM EWRIE R ZHRIBERE 2 KA
AIRMEEE2,298,0008 L (ZEENF !
2,293,000/ 7T) I 2 & Bl k(B 2 e W HR 18
e Z % #852,298,0008 7L (ZZTTNEF -
2,293,000/ 70) - NEEWEB ZE L H
BB AMERRIEMEERAZE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The aged analysis of accounts and bills receivable that are
not considered to be impaired is as follows:

Group

Neither past due nor impaired 77 8sk 7 IR R (E
Less than 90 days past due #1490 H
Over 90 days past due # #i8:E90H

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.
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W AR B BRRME 2 BUERTA R R B 2 Rk
DT

rEE

113,899 78,547
4,898 5,841
49 -
118,846 84,388

3 8 380 B Rl (B 2 FE WGBS B D B4 |
HAEZB2FFP  REIHAEME RN KL
ﬁ o

EEHEN EIIERE < BWIE - B RE
TEASEBRRIEZBUEP  FAEL
B ARAEEMRR  LEFEUNZFE
MIELRERE  REASEEERAEEX
B - MERIDRREA ZE0ER - NEME
W ERZEESFATAERRIEMBER
RITLE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and bank balances 3R & K& R1T 45 91,755
Time deposits with original maturity

of less than three months

REIHBELR=EA ZEHEFR 118,953
Time deposits with original maturity

of over three months when acquired

RUEBERRERHRB=EA

TE BRTF 3K 316,669

Cash and cash equivalents
RehFERELER 527,377

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$15,590,000 (2009:
HK$28,868,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.

The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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102,776 1,618 46
108,952 17,124 16,984
200,439 - -
412,167 18,742 17,030

RBEER  AEBUARE [ARE])
FTE RS RIRITEEEREE15,590,00078
T (ZEZNF 128,868,000 L) - AR
BASERALBAEMER - AM - RESD
BISNEE HIEPI R 48 TE - SERMNEEER
TE o AEE R EEARITINERER 2 RITH
AREHBAHME -

BT SRS BB TFRA R 2B F R 5
B o EHERZ BRE—DE—FTE 8
TAEEZ NBRLBRME - HAHEH
BRAEH B -

ROTBFEREMERFEECERFZR
17 - EAI R -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at N2 EMHEAEAE - BANBEELEERER
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods WMEMARZRROTAOT ¢

received, is as follows:

Group TEE

Within 90 days 90 H 1A 127,650 102,357

Between 91 and 180 days 91H £ 180H 2,538 2,301

Between 181 and 365 days 181 H&£365H 365 4,081

Over 365 days 365H A & 723 2,312
131,276 111,061

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are FERBETETETE - B—/#ZBRO0B RET

normally settled on 90-day terms.

Group "5 H

Forward currency contracts & BiYNE & 49 1,744 152 6,080 3,984

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the RHINE A v EEEmEEEANYEMAR o £

same as their fair values. The above transactions involving M RATESM T E X 5 JhET i 8

derivative financial instruments are with creditworthy banks Wt BRI ITHETT -

with no recent history of default.

The Group has entered into various forward currency AEBCIVZHERPEESNEEE KL

contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which FENEREEEE ZINERL - I

did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Net fair SHEBATAE T A AEEIREERE A

value gain on non-hedging currency derivatives amounting 2,196,0007T (—ZZZ N, : #5%¥5,159,000

to HK$2,196,000 were credited to the income statement 7o) EREREAUZEERDR (FF7) o

during the year (2009: HK$5,159,000) (note 7).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 March 2010, the Group had available banking facilities R_ZE—ZF=ZA=+—8 A5£EEA
amounting to HK$210,800,000 (2009: HK$256,000,000) of FHAIRITRLE ££210,800,0008 7L (ZZEF
which approximately HK$2,009,000 (2009: HK$2,612,000) JLEF 256,000,000 ) - EFEHALD
was utilised. The banking facilities were supported by 2,009,000/ 7T (ZZEZ I : 2,612,000/
corporate guarantees executed by the Company and TL) c RITMEBARB REETHE QR
certain of its subsidiaries. R AFER -

Shares ;'8

Authorised: JE5E :
Balance at beginning and end of year
F Y RFREH 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid: B31T &2 :

Balance at beginning of year & {145 & 640,990,445 653,546,445 64,099 65,355
Share options exercised (note (a))

BT (Mix() 5,731,000 - 573 -
Repurchased (note (b)) BB (M sE(b)) (4,914,000) (12,556,000) (491) (1,256)
Balance at end of year F# 4t &k 641,807,445 640,990,445 64,181 64,099
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(a)

The subscription rights attaching to 5,731,000 share
options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$0.5 per share (note 26), resulting in the issue of
5,731,000 shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$2,865,000.

During the year, the Company repurchased its
4,914,000 (2009: 12,556,000) ordinary shares
at a price ranging from HK$0.59 to HK$1.04
(2009: HK$0.48 to HK$1.01) per share at a total
consideration of approximately HK$3,813,000 (2009:
HK$8,506,000). 4,914,000 (2009: 10,844,000) and
nil (2009: 1,712,000) repurchased ordinary shares
were cancelled during the year and subsequent to
the end of the reporting period, respectively. Details
of the repurchases are disclosed in the Report of the
Directors under the heading of “Purchase, redemption
or sale of the Company’s listed securities”. The
premium of approximately HK$3,322,000 (2009:
HK$7,250,000) paid on the repurchase of such
shares was debited to the share premium account
and an amount of HK$491,000 (2009: HK$1,256,000)
was transferred from retained profits of the Company
to the capital redemption reserve, as set out in note
27 to the financial statements.
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R BAZEBOT

Fi75,731,00017 B AR i L AR BERE IR
FRREAR0. 5B TTARIBEEITE (M
26) » A3 775,731,0000% & /% E &
0ABTHRN - RINKRBAMNBRS
RIB 52,865,000 7T °

NAEE - KATAER.598TE
1048 T (ZZEZTNF 0488 L E
1.01% 7o) 2 & 1§ 8 = H 4,914,000
B(ZZZT HF: 12,556,0000%) &
MR R E 4 /3,813,000 T
(ZEZT N F :8,506,000/8 7T) ° AT
B0 24,914,000 (ZZE T L F -
10,844,0000%) RE(ZEZT N &F:
1,712,0000%) EBRE D RIRAFE
RMEBR BTN - BRI ZFER
REESERERN(EE  BERRDE
RAFZ LTES] —B-piEODE
B8 I 19 P 2 15 2 0 (B 493,322,000/
T (ZEZNF ¢ 7,250,000 70) B
B RERPHR  WERARR
REEMEEA491,0008 7T (ZETN
£ : 1,256,000 7T) ZE RNBEEIFE
(R mERMEE27)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme included the Company’s directors (including
independent non-executive directors), other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to
the Group, and any shareholder of the Group. The Scheme
became effective on 28 August 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme may not exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on that date or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be determined by the board of directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion. This period will expire no later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options. At the
time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer, and
the amount payable on acceptance of an offer is HK$1.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant; (ii the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on
the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

Directors %

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, 550,000 - - - 550,000 14 January 2004
Mickey “TINE-A+RA
RekRE

550,000 - - - 550,000 13 October 2006
L ETATER

550,000 - - - 550,000 2 Januery 2008
“ZZ)\§-AZH

- 200,000 - - 200,000 6 January 2010
“5-TE-A5A

- 150,000 - - 150,000 6 January 2010
ZE-55-A5R

- 150,000 - - 150,000 6Januan/ 2010
ZE-TE-f5B

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, 100,000 - - - 100,000 14 January 2004
Helen “TIRE-A+EA
BARRL

100,000 - - - 100,000 13 October 2006
ZRTETATER

100,000 - - - 100,000 2 January 2008
“ZT\E-AZH

60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009
“ZINE-ARA

45,000 - - - 45,000 5 January 2009
“ZENE-ARA

45,000 - - - 45,000 5 January 2009
“ETNF-ARA

- 52,000 - - 52,000 6 January 2010
“T-F5-A5A

- 39,000 - - 39,000 6 January 2010
“Z-FE-ARA

- 39,000 - - 39,000 6 January 2010

ZE-55-A5R
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REERRAE I TE RS R IT 2 AR ARG 2R
BE - TEERARTRODRELBEHE
EBBMARSGHARAR ([BRAT]) &8
MERABZZWHE ()R D BIRDREE
ROBHAESEEEBRIASERER
Frif 2 FH W HIE - Ri) AR B MD R %
HHBCZHE=Z&EF Z2EREE °

BRI ORI TR A AR B SRR K
T EREZER -

Ty BEREAFRARNTEITRITEZBER
#

14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 3225 3200
“IIRE-AtMAEZE-ZE\A-T4A

18 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1010 1.010
CRRETATEECR-ZENACTHR
2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0850 0850
Z3Z\5-AZREE-ZEN\AZTtA
6 January 2010 t0 27 August 2012 0,950 0950
“E-FE-FRECF-CENACHR
1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0950 0950
Z5—5-f-BEF-E/\AzTA
1 January 201210 27 August 2012 0.950 0.950
“E-CF-R-AECF-CF\A-ttA
14 January 2004 1o 27 August 2012 3225 3.200
ZERNE-ATREEIR-ZE\AZTHE

3 October 2006 t0 27 August 2012 1010 1.010
—7 £ /\E'HH’ AZEZ ﬁ_—g/\ﬁ :‘HEE
2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0850 0850
ZREN\E-AZRECE-CE/\ACTHR
5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
“EENF-ARAZCE-ZENAZTEA

Januan/ 20100 27 August 2012 0500 0500
“T-3F-f-H%

Z2-ZEN\AZttA

1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
“E——F-A-BE-F-ZF/\AZTtA
6 January 2010 o 27 August 2012 0950 0950
“F-FE-ARBECE-CE\AT4A
1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0.950 0950
Z3——F-f-BEZZ-ZEN\AZttA
1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0.950 0950

“E-E-F-AE-F-E\A=ttH



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following share options were outstanding

Scheme during the year (continued):

Directors (con inued)
Eg ( %’ /

Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby
k)it

Mr. Kimmel, Phiip Brian
fARBEE

Mr. Wong Hel-chiu
BEBRE

400,000
600,000
600,000
260,000
195,000

195,000

500,000
600,000
600,000
260,000
195,000

195,000

27,500
82,500
82,500

82,500

240,000
180,000

180,000

240,000
180,000

180,000

240,000
180,000

180,000

(260,000

(195,000

400,000
600,000

600,000

195,000
240,000
180,000

180,000

500,000
600,000
600,000
260,000
195,000
195,000
240,000
180,000

180,000

21,500
82,500
82,500
82,500
240,000
180,000

180,000

under the

14 January 2004
“EImE-A+mA
13 October 2006
“TEAEHATCA
2 January 2008
“ZI)\F-AZA
5 January 2009
“FENF-ARA
5 January 2009
ZEENE-ARR
5 January 2009
“TENE-REA
6 January 2010
“5-ZF-f5H
6 January 2010
“Z-TE-A5H
6 January 2010
Z2-25-A5A

14 January 2004
“FIRF-ATRA
13 October 2006
“35F1+A1=R
2 January 2008
“FE\5-AZR
5 January 2009
“ZTNE-ATA
5 January 2009
ZZTNE-AEA
5 January 2009
ZTTNF-ARA
6 January 2010
—E-55-A5H
6 January 2010
ZE-S5-A5R
6 January 2010
“T-F5-A5A

5 January 2009
ZEINE-ARA
5 January 2009
“TINE-AEA
5 January 2009
Z2TNE-AEA
5 January 2009
“ERNE-REA
6 January 2010
“Z-EE-A5H
6 January 2010
ZE-RE-5B
6 January 2010
ZE-2E-fiH
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14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012
ZIIRE-ARAECE-EN\AZHHA

13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012
ZERNETATERECE-ZENACTHA
2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012
“EE\F-A-AE-F-—FN\A=TtA
5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012
“ETNE-ARRECE-CENACTLA
1 January 2010 o 27 August 2012
“5-55-f-BE-Z3-—EN\B-t4A
1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012
“5——%-f-BEZ-ZFN\AZttA
6 January 2010 to 27 August 2012
“E-55-fRBEZE-—EN\BZt4R

1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012
ZE——F-A-BEZT-§/\AZTtA
1 January 20120 27 August 2012
Z2-CF-R-BEIR-ZF/\AZTtA

14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012
ZERNE-ATREECE-ZENATHA
ber 2006 10 27 August 2012
CERETATZEEIR-ZE/\AZTHA
2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012
Z2R\§-RZRE-R-ZH/\AZ TR
5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012
ZSTNE-ARRECT—F/\AZ TR
1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012
“F-FE-A-BE-F-CE\A 4R

1 January 2011 10 27 August 2012
Z5—F-f-BEIT-ZE/\AZTHA
6January 20101027 August 2012

E-RE-ARAZEE-2F/\Az 1A

January 2011 to 27 August 2012
—3——F-A-BEZF-ZF/\BZ TR
1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012
“F-—#-f-BE-E-F/\AZT4A

5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012
ZIENF-RRRR-T-—HN\A-t4A
1 January 2010 10 27 August 2012
ZE-ZF-A-BEZF-2F/\AZTA
1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012
“3—E-f-PE-E-ZENACTHA
1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012
B CF-R-RECRCF\BCTHA
6 January 2010 to 27 August 2012
Z5-RE-ARBECT-ZE\AZTHA
1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012
—T——F-A-BE-F-F/\B- LA
1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012
“5-—F-B-BE-F-—F/\B-ttA

3225

1010

0.850

0.500

0.500

0.500

0.950

0.950

0950

0.850

0.500

0.500

0.500

0.950

0.950

0.950

0.500

0.500

0.500

0.500

0.950

0950

0.950

T OB R S AAE I T RITE 2 B A
(&)

0.850

0500

0.500

0.500

0,950

0.950

0.950

0.850

0.500

0.500

0.500

0.950

0.950

0.950

0.500

0.500

0.500

0.500

0.950

0.950

0950



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following share options were outstanding under the THEERAE A F ARG EI T RITHE 2 AR AE
Scheme during the year (continued): (&) :
Directors (continued)
E2(9)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony 200,000 - - - 200,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1010
ErS S ZELETATER ZERSETATERZCE-CEN\ACTHA
200,000 - - - 200,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
Z3%)\5-AZR ZEEN\F-RCRE-EI-ZE\ACttA
80,000 - - - 80,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
“ERNE-ARE ZERAE-RRRECE-CHM\ACTHA
60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 1o 27 August 2012 0500 0500
ZETNE-ARE CT-TE-A-BECT-CENACTLA
60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 201110 27 Augus 2012 0500 0500
“EENF-ARA ZE-—§-A-HEZ3-ZF/\ACTA
- 80,000 - - 80,000 6 January 2010 6January 2010t027 August 2012 0950 0.950
“5-2F-ARA ZE-BF-ARAZCE-—ENA-TtA
- 60,000 - - 60,000 6 January 2010 1 January 2011 to 27 Augus t 2012 0950 0,950
Z2-RE-ARR ZE--5-A-AECE3-ZH)\A-t4A
- 60,000 - - 60,000 6 January 2010 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0.950 0.950
Z2-F5-A5A ZF-A-BEE-ZEN\A-THA
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 500,000 - - - 500,000 14 January 2004 14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 322 3.200
A ZZEME-ATRA ZEEMF-ATNAZCE-ZENAZ A
600,000 - - - 600,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
ZERNETATER ZERAETATCAZCE N AZTHA
600,000 - - - 600,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZERN\E-AZB ZEENE-ARECE-CENACTHA
240000 - - - 240,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZTENE-ARA ZEEAF-RRARCT-—HN\ACTtA
180,000 - - - 180,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 1o 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZETNE-AER CF-TE-A-BECT-CENACTLA
180,000 - - - 180,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0500 0500
ZERNE-RRE ZE-—%-B-BEIR-F/\RZTtHE
- 160,000 - - 160,000 6 January 2010 6 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0,950 0950
ZE-EE-ARA ZE-RE-AAAECE-—ENACTHA
- 120,000 - - 120,000 6January 2010 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0950 0,950
Z2-RE-ARR ZE--§-A-AECE-2E\A-t4A
- 120,000 - - 120,000 6 January 2010 1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0950 0.950
ZF-TF-ARA R CF-A-AECT-CEN\ACTR
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 200,000 - - - 200,000 13 October 2006 13 QOctober 2006 to 27 August 2012 1010 1,010
Eﬁﬁﬁi -z 7/\¢+H+ B Z% ?/\E“-H-‘- 51_97—5 \ﬂ “'JEE]
200,000 - - - 200,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0850
ZER\F-AZR ZER\E-ACRECR-HN\ACTHA
80,000 - - - 80,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZEENF-ARR ZEEAE-ARAECT-—ENAZHtA
60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
“EENE-RER B3-BE-A-BECT-CENACTHA
60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 1o 27 August 2012 0500 0500
ZERNE-RRE ZE-—E-f-BEZE-ZENACTHR
- 80,000 - - 80,000 6 January 2010 6 January 201010 27 August 2012 0.950 0950
“5-%F-fxA ZZ-EF-ARHEZE-CHNACTER
- 60,000 - - 60,000 6 January 2010 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0,950 0950
“5-5F-fRA ZE—F-A-AZ-F-—FN\A-TtA
- 60,000 - - 60,000 6 January 2010 1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0.950 0,950

“2RE-ARE CRCE-R-HECR-CENACTHA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following share options were outstanding under the T 5 R A F AR EI T RITEE 2 BB AR
Scheme during the year (continued): (&) :
Directors (continued)
2%
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul 200,000 - - - 200,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
RRERE “E5NEHATER ZEENETATZAZCE-—FN\A-TLA
200,000 - - - 200,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0850 0850
ZERN\E-AZE ZRRN\F-ARECT-CENACTHA
80,000 - - - 80,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENE-ARA ZEEAGF-RRAZCE-—HN\ACTtA
60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 1o 27 August 2012 0500 0500
ZETNE-ARE ZE-BE-f-BECT-CENACTHA
60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
“EINF-ARR —E--§-A-AEZ5-F/\AZTtA
- 80,000 - - 80,000 6 January 2010 6 January 2010 o 27 August 2012 0950 0.950
ZE-RE-RE CR-TE-AREECR-CENACTHA
- 60,000 - - 60,000 6January 2010 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0950 0,950
“3-3F-fRH —E—F-f-H2Z-—H/\A-ttR
- 60,000 - - 60,000 6 January 2010 1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0960 0950

ZE-RE-fRR ZE-CF-A-BECE-ZE/VAZTHA

M. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 200,000 - - - 200,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012
RFIEE ZE5ETATER ZEEAETATIRECTZE\AZT1A
200,000 - - - 200,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012
ZER)\§-FzH ZFENE-fBEEZE-ZENACTHR
80,000 - - - 80,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012
ZETNE-FRB ZEENE-RRAECE-CENACTA
60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012
ZTENF-ARA ZE-TF-F-AECT-CHN\ACttA
60,000 - - - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 1o 27 August 2012
ZEENF-ARA ZE-—5-A-REIR-H/\A-TtA
- 80,000 - - 80,000 6 January 2010 6 January 2010 to 27 Augus t 2012
“E-2F-AxB ZZ-EF-ARHECZ-EN\ACttR
- 60,000 - - 60,000 6 January 2010 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012
ZE-EE-ARE ZE—5-A-RER-H/\A-TtA
- 60,000 - - 60,000 6 January 2010 1 January 20121027 Augus t 2012
Z5-FE-fRH ZE-CE-f-HEZE-ZEN\AZttH
11675000 3,630,000 (455,000) - 14,850,000
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0.950

0.950

0.950
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0.950
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following share options were outstanding under the THEERAE A F ARG EI T RITHE 2 AR AE
Scheme during the year (continued): (&) :
Other employees EthEE
In aggregate A i 6,550,000 - - (6,550,000) - 14 January 2004 14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 3225 3200
ZTIRF-A+RA ZZERE-ATMRECE-ZF\AT4A
7,020,000 - - (7,020,000) - 14 January 2004 1 January 2005 to 27 August 2012 3.025 3.200
ZZIME-ATBA ZEERE-A-RAECT-—HN\A-ttA
9,730,000 - - (110,000) 9,620,000 13 October 2006 13 Qctober 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
ZEENETATIR CEESETATIRECECENACTLA
10,800,000 - - (400,000) 10,400,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0850 0.850
ZF3\5-fZR ZEE/\F-AZAEZE-ZEN\AZTtR
5,884,000 - 3,748,000) (56,000 2,080,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0500 0500
ZEENF-ARA ZEEAF-ARAZCE-—HNACTtA
4,476,000 - (1,528,000 (117,000) 2,831,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZETNF-ARA ZE-TF-R-AECT-—HNAACTtA
4,476,000 - - (162,000) 4314,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 o 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZERNE-ARB ZE—E-f-BECE-CENACTHA
84,000 - - - 84,000 5 January 2009 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0500 0500
“ZTNE-ATA ZE-A-REZE-ZE/\AZTtR
- 5852000 - (77,0000 5,575,000 6 January 2010 6 January 2010to 27 August 2012 0.950 0.950
Z2-RE-ARA ZE-RE-ARAECE-CHNACTHA
- 4311000 - (69,000 4,242,000 6 January 2010 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0950 0.950
ZE-FE-ARE ZE-—F-f-BEZE-ZENACftA
- 4,407,000 - (84,000 4,323,000 6 January 2010 1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0950 0950

ZE-5F-fRH ZE-CF-A-HEZE-ZEN\AZftH

49020000 14370000 (52760000 (14,645,000 43,469,000

60,695,000 18000000 (5,731,000 (14,645,000 58,319,000

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding FARITE AL AR R M -

during the year:

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of - BREZFBHERE A REEFMATRE
grant until the commencement of the exercise period. BHLE -

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to - Eﬁ&*gZ?:fﬁﬁﬁ-@ixﬁxjiil%%ﬁzaa
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other By EMARRBRANZ FUF B M ER -
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

**  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the o DR R R B A2 KA R R B R
date of grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange E%?ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁgﬁﬂf\. A %@ﬁu:fﬁi% Bz B
closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the RFTUT(E o LR IEREITE AR
date of grant of the options. The price of the Company’s IHXTQTT&EﬁﬁﬁﬁAﬁ@ﬁE ST
shares disclosed as at the date of the exercise of the share PR AT T {50 655 2 Bip SX P U T (B A P A9 8K -

options is the weighted average of the Stock Exchange
closing prices over all of the exercises of options within the
disclosure line.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The 5,731,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 5,731,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$573,000 and share
premium of HK$2,292,000, as further detailed in note 25
to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
2,050,000, 12,870,000, 13,650,000, 11,979,000 and
17,770,000 share options with exercise prices of HK$3.225,
HK$1.01, HK$0.85, HK$0.50 and HK$0.95 per share,
respectively, outstanding under the Scheme, which altogether
represented approximately 9.09% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 58,319,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional issued share
capital of HK$5,832,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$48,252,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of
4,148,000 share options with exercise prices of HK$0.50,
HK$0.85 and HK$0.95 per share, respectively, were
exercised. It resulted in the issue of 4,148,000 ordinary
shares of the Company.

The fair value of the share options under the Scheme granted
during the year ended 31 March 2010 was estimated at
approximately HK$3,734,000 (2009: HK$2,419,000) of
which the Company recognised share option expenses of
HK$3,200,000 and HK$1,200,000 during the years ended
31 March 2010 and 20089.

As at 31 March 2010, the total equity-settled options
expense of HK$1,753,000 under the Scheme had not been
recognised in the income statement.

The fair value was estimated as at the date of grant using
Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used for the
year ended 31 March 2010:

Date of share options granted: #% i BB # B HA:
Volatility (%): Y& 18 (%):

Risk-free interest rate (%): @k % (%):

Expected life of options (year). Eﬁﬂx%ZTﬁﬁﬁﬁi,ﬁﬁ (%) :
Dividend yield (%): f%.8 % (%):

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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FRETE 25,731 OOOF%HXTE%@Z?X
775,731,0008% X 1 7] & 8 I LA & %7 g K
573,000/ JT & i% 1%557&{%;2,292,000;‘%7_1 '
E—THBHRP SRR E25 -

RBEBMK ARARARBERGERLE
mm M K17 6 2 B8 & # X 52,050,000

+12,870,000f» + 13,650, 0001
11,979, ooo@ %17,770, ooo@ A HAF R
NAEE BB EITHIRMD#9.09% @ MITHEE
Bl AEK3.225%8 T ~ 1.01/8 7T » 0.85/8
JC * 0.508 7T 2 0.95/8 7T ° RIEA R AR
fRAZEHE - 2EITEARITEBRES BB
SN B 1758,319,0000x N A Al L @AY » M
BITIR A R IR 19 4 B Bl 3 513% 505,832,000
7 7T I 4948,252,000/% 7T (R B 3 17 &
) -

—
>

EREHRIAE - B A H£4,148,00017 B J%
B D RIRITHEEZR0.505 T 085,%75
)SZOQS%TEZ%TTE‘E A BTN
#A%4,148,0000% o

REE-_Z—ZSF=-A=+—HIFERK
WE;&%M&M&H&%Z FEHBFFDA
3,734,000/ 7T (_Zciﬁﬁ 2,419,000/
) HAREBE_ZT—ZEFRE_ZTTN
¢5H5+—E¢¢F AR R RERIE R
323,200,000 7T 5. 1,200,000/ 7T °

RZE—ZEF=ZA=+—0  sTEE 8%
ﬁﬁ% O ACAE R 1,753,000/ 7T I 2 A U
TIRMERR ©

RNHEDREEBEMEAA AR - SRR
A fEat - BB B BB Z R ART o
TRIHBRBZ_Z—TF=A=+—H
HEREAERZBEAZHAER

6 January 2010 5 January 2009
—E-FF-AXE “TTNF-ARA

42.17 50.90
1.10 1.23
2.64 3.64
3.87 5.38

B ERERDRRELBETE - B
RV BERT ] A ﬁﬁZﬁ@E@f TEH R 0
[RERAE R SR IR BN A RBE 2 Ra% - B
ARBBRBEERERMER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(@) Group (a) #&£ME
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the REBREAFERBAEFE 2 HEHEH
movements therein for the current and prior years are ERESHHERVBRRGEER
presented in the consolidated statement of changes BEK o

in equity of the financial statements.

(b) Company (b) AT
At1 April 2008 R=EE/\ELA—A 70,183 203 66,982 7872 7,013 152,253
Final 2008 dividend declared (note 12) BB -ZE\ERHR S
(zx12) - - - - (13,021) (13,021)

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year (note 11)
EmafIRAEE 2 ENELE (1) - - - - 45,930 45,930
Shares repurchased (note 25) EEIR(H (Hf325) (7,250) 1,256 - - (1,256) (7,250)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments (note 26)
BRAMEREEURIAZ 258 (Bi:26) - - - 1,200 - 1,200
Interim 2009 dividend (note 12) ~SEAEHERE (H5H12) - - - - (,729) (9,729)

At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009

RZETNEF=A=+-BRZEENENA-H 62,933 1,459 66,982 9,072 28,943 169,389
Final 2009 dividend declared (note 12)

EERZESNERGRE (MiH12) - - - - (15,974) (15,974)
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year (note 11)

EmaRIRAEE 2 ENELE (1) - - - - 37,317 37,317
Shares repurchased (note 25) BRI (FizE25) (3322) 491 - - (491) (3.322)
Issue of shares (note 25) 4781 (HizE25) 2,292 - - - - 2,292
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments (note 26)

TMEREZE RN 2.2 508 (3Eo6) - - - 3200 - 3,200
Interim 2010 dividend (note 12) ~E—ZERHRS (F1iE12) - - - - (10,216) (10,216)

At 31 March 2010 R=E-F£=A=1-H 61,903 1,950 66,982 12,212 39,579 182,686
The contributed surplus of the Company represents KRR ZEBABBRIIIERE—NLNMT
the excess of the fair value of the shares of the FNAEEEHEBFATNENE QAR
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group MZAFEBBEARNGARBRZEER
reorganisation in September 1994, over the nominal EmMBRTROHZEBEZZR -

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On 9 May 2009, the Group acquired 100% interests
in FRD Worldwide Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as “FRD Group”) at a cash
consideration of HK$1,000,000 from an independent
third party (the “Acquisition”). FRD Group is principally
engaged in garment trading, distribution and retailing
business in the People’s Republic of China.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of FRD Group as at the date of acquisition and the
corresponding carrying amounts immediately before
the Acquisition were as follows:

Plant and equipment = K& &

Inventories 17§

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
FERTRIE -~ e KEARKERIE

Cash and cash equivalents
RekFRREIER

Accounts payable fEff8RIE

Accrued liabilities and other payables
FEET B B KA e ARIE

Goodwill on acquisition Yg g E18 > g &

Satisfied by cash A & %+
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14

RZZFEZAFRANA  REERR
© 81,000,000 TR BILE=F
WHE S 1t (BRIR) AR AR R EME
NEl(GETEEHEE]) 100%
([WHE=EE])  SEHEREZERG
FEARKMBENEREEZES - DR
TEXEK -

SEHEERENEERBBENKRE
BHMzAYE RERKESHEMNZ
HEAREEDT

595 595
1,494 1,494
525 525
239 239
(518) (518)
(1,937) (1,937)
398 398
602

1,000



(i)

(i

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the Acquisition is as
follows:

Cash consideration IR & (8

Cash and cash equivalents acquired Frf3IR 4 M ERIIEELEE

(%)

RUBEEL RS LEFRREERZ
FRE AT

(1,000)
239

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the Acquisition

B RIE 2 RE REFRBESIER 2R

Since its acquisition, FRD Group contributed
approximately HK$2,245,000 to the Group’s revenue
and loss of HK$4,668,000 to the consolidated profit
for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Had the business combination taken place at the
beginning of the year, the revenue and net profit of
the Group the year ended 31 March 2010 would
have been approximately HK$1,289,834,000 and
approximately HK$103,975,000, respectively.

On 16 April 2008, the Group acquired 100%
interests in Star (1) Limited, Star (2) Limited, Star (3)
Limited and Viewexcel Limited (collectively known as
“MOCCA”) at a cash consideration of HK$3,672,000
“MOCCA
Acquisition”). MOCCA are engaged in the trading,

from independent third parties (the

distribution and retailing businesses of footwear, bags
and accessories in Hong Kong.
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(761)

auszﬁ%%mm CEEREBAARE
EEE—_T-—TF=A=+—HIHF
J;ZLlézﬁﬁa%ﬁ%’qz,maooo/’ém&rﬂﬁ
A F A5 TR E518 4,668,000 7T

WEBAFRFNEE  AIAEEE
E_E-ZTF-A=Z+—HULEFEZ
W 25 B 4 )56 5 Bl A 1,289,834,00078
7T 12103,975,0005# 7T, ©

RZZEZENFEOA+H  AEEE
WL E :Huﬁzﬁ%EE( VERRAFR - B
EQBERRA EQ)AR A A K
RARRAF <,.ub$m7,% [MOCCA]) 2 &
B % - 3R e KB /R3,672,000/ T
(MOCCAUfEE1E]) - MOCCATER
BREERE NeEkEMHicES 5
HRTEER o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i)  (continued) (i) (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities MOCCAT B EE KB BN E B
of MOCCA as at the date of acquisition and the Bz AFE REEMOCCAKE=E
corresponding carrying amounts immediately before TR Z HHEEBREELL T :

the MOCCA Acquisition were as follows:

Plant and equipment &5 & & 1& 14 562 562
Inventories 7 & 3,482 3,482
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
TENFIE -~ e RE M EKARIE 1,676 1,676
Cash and cash equivalents
BehFRRLER 172 172
Accounts payable FEf}BRIE (1,349 (1,349)
Other payables H b FE BRI (237) (237)
4,306 4,306

Excess over the cost of business
combinations recognised in the income

statement
PR R FER 2 BBEBE 2K A 7 (634)
Satisfied by cash IR & Xt 3,672
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ii) (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

Gy (#&)

FMOCCAKRIBER 2 RE NERB

equivalents in respect of the MOCCA Acquisition is SHEBZFREATET :
as follows:
Cash consideration ;&R (B (3,672)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Fif53R & NRERIREIER 172
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the MOCCA Acquisition
BMOCCAKIEETE v e M ERFSEE 2 F R (3,500)
Since its acquisition, MOCCA contributed B U BE E LA - MOCCAR RN EE
HK$13,141,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of HE_ZTNF=A=1T—HIEFE
HK$13,700,000 to the consolidated profit for the year 2 W B B13,141,0008 T K AR A
ended 31 March 2009. i 1| %5 2R jE54813,700,0008 T
Had the business combination taken place at the MEBEHRFENEE - AIXNEER
beginning of the year, the revenue and net profit of E_ETANF=ZA=+—HILFEZ
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 would Wz R AR 3 Bl /31,464,375,00078
have been HK$1,464,375,000 and HK$53,029,000, 7T }53,029,000%8 T ©
respectively.
As at 31 March 2010, the Company had provided corporate RZE—ZEF=A=+—08 XQFG®EE
guarantees to certain banks for banking facilities provided T0f BB A R SRTTRLE & TER1TIR M
to certain of its subsidiaries. These banking facilities had NAER - RBERR RFRITMEZ
been utilised to the extent of approximately HK$2,009,000 EERAEEE 4 52,009,000 T (ZEZ N
(2009: HK$2,612,000) as at the end of the reporting F :2,612,0007T) °
period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(@) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
16) under an operating lease arrangement, with a
lease negotiated for a term of five years. The term
of the lease also required the tenant to pay security
deposits.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had total future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant falling
due as follows:

Group

Within one year —F K
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
FoEENTF (BEBERSF)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms of two to three years.
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(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Group

Within one year —F K
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
E_EZENF (BEERERF)

In addition, the operating lease rentals for certain retail
shops are based on the higher of a fixed rental and
contingent rent based on sales of these retail shops
pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in the
respective rental agreements. As the future sales of
these retail shops could not be accurately determined,
the relevant contingent rent has not been included
above and only the minimum lease commitments have
been included in the above table.

The Company did not have any operating lease

arrangements at the end of the reporting period (2009:

Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 30(b) above, the Group had contracted for the
following capital commitments:

() At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments in respect of management fees payable
falling due as follows:

Within one year —F K

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
FE_ZFNF (BREERERF)

After five years LF AR

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had commitments in respect of investments in
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises in Mainland China
as follows:

Kingmaker Zhong Shan JEZ &1L
Kingstar Jiangxi 1= £;1 78

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
capital commitments in respect of property, plant and
equipment as follows:

Contracted but not provided for
Construction of factory buildings

ERIMERBEBZBEAETRE
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(iv)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other commitments

Contracted but not provided for

establishment of production plants in Mainland China

BRI AERBEN T BEAMRLEERE

The Company did not have any significant commitments at
the end of the reporting period (2009: Nil).

(@)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, during the vyear,
the Group paid rental expenses of approximately
HK$978,000 (2009: HK$999,000) to Kingmaker
Footwear Company Limited, a related company of
which Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, Madam Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen and Mr. Lee Kung, directors and
shareholders of the Company, are also directors and
shareholders, and of approximately HK$6,000 (2009:
HK$6,000) to Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey. The
rental expenses were determined with reference to
the market conditions existing at the time when the
respective rental agreements were entered into.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

Short term employee benefits 42 £i{& & & 7
Post-employment benefits 1& F 14 18 7

Equity-settled share option expense LAREZS &5 & 7 BEARAER X

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

XA EEABNRM AT

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHEAEHMIANREHRZEEEN
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as D

follows:

Group TERE

2010 —E—Ef

Financial assets BRERE

Available-for-sale investments AJ it 1 &% & - - 2,185 2,185
Accounts and bills receivable FEUARIE K& E ik - 118,846 - 118,846

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

FEPAENNIE - e REMEKRERE  MBEE - 6,599 - 6,599
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ & T A 1,744 - - 1,744
Cash and cash equivalents I & R FRE£1E B - 527,377 - 527,377

1,744 652,822 2,185 656,751
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial LR T ANKEHAREEENT
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as (&) :

follows (continued):

Group
2010

Financial liabilities

Accounts and bills payable JERERIE KR Z#
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables
AR EERAEMENRE MBEE
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ & T &

rEE
—E-BF
g SR
- 131,276 131,276
- 32,503 32,503
152 - 152
152 163,779 163,931
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial LRSI ANKEHARBEEMENT
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as (&) :
follows (continued):

Group rEE
2009 —ETNF
Financial assets MEEE

Available-for-sale investments 7] f H & &K & - - 880 880
Accounts and bills receivable & ERIE M Z 1% - 84,388 - 84,388
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

STATENFE e REMEMIRE  BEE - 5,884 - 5,884
Derivative financial instruments $74 ¢/l T A 6,080 - - 6,080
Cash and cash equivalents & R ERIIREIE R - 412,167 - 412,167

6,080 502,439 880 509,399
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial LRSI ANKEHARBEEMENT

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as (&) -
follows (continued):

Group rEE

2009 —ETNF

Financial liabilities BEEE

Accounts and bills payable JEffBRIE K Zi% - 111,051

Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables

A aEREMENRE MKEE - 31,441
Derivative financial instruments $T4 &gt T A 3,984 -
3,984 142,492
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial LRSI ANKEHARBEEMENT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as (&) :
follows (continued):

Company RAF

Financial assets BBERE

Due from subsidiaries FEUS KB A RIFKIE 842,738 792,019

Cash and cash equivalents & N ERIREIEE 18,742 17,030
861,480 809,049

Financial liabilities BERasE

Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other payables

SFARGBEREMENREZMKEE 1,077 1,066

Due to subsidiaries &1 T & 2 75K IE 673,836 640,211

674,913 641,277
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Fair values are measured in whole or in part
by reference to published quotes in an active
market. A financial instrument is regarded as
quoted in an active market if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis.

Fair values are measured using a valuation
techniqgue based on assumptions that are
supported by prices from observable current
market transactions for which pricing is obtained
via pricing services, but where prices have not
been determined in an active market, financial
assets with fair value based on broker quotes,
investments in private equity funds with fair
values obtained via fund managers and assets
that are valued using the Group’s own model
whereby the majority of assumptions are market
observation.

Fair values are determined in whole or in part
using a valuation technique (model) based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices
from observable current market transactions in
the same instrument nor are they based on
available market data. Valuation techniques are
used to the extent that observable inputs are not
available, thereby allowing for situations in which
there is little, if any, market activity for the asset
or liability at the measurement date. However,
the fair value measurement objective remains the
same, that is, an exit price from the perspective
of the Group. Therefore, unobservable inputs
reflect the Group’s own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions
about risk). These inputs are developed based
on the best information available, which might
include the Group’s own data.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 5 2 $ 3% %E R 5 | ANNUAL REPORT 3% 2010 151

AEBERATERABEERRESRTA L

NE
%*i
F_M
5=

o

3

RFEEE2BAHBL2EE LM
ZEBMEREER - NEARE
BRETHHXZM BEEH
B TEEE - TERBAR
EERELN  HRERBRER
MEELRZRAFRAETZH
Ry Al TARETR
BMSHE -

RPEERBHEERME A
BRRIIMEXHZERIFZ
R& HEEBRBEBTEERY
ABS - B ERILENEED
BEE  AMKEBEAFEEERK
KRBz ERMEE  AVEES
BESEERFTZALEES LK
AASEBS 2 BABECEE
(REARERARTIHER) ©

ANFEEE2BLABORBEER
i (RE) BE  ZFRERE
BRR I AR T AN A BRI
TSR HEHRIIE - IRIEAA
BRMESHBE/ER - WEEAR
SHERBAE " REMRMBER
fii n#FL8 (MA) EEXRE
Rt EBERHZMISESHFE - 2
NFEEFERFRRFTE - H
fAEENAE 2 HEER - B
bt AABENHAERBRANE
EESHmS2REBTEEL
BEERAMEABRR (BEER
B2 BR) 2BR&E - ZFE8A
ERBEASE QS BEAERR
RS RIEEMER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 March 2010, the Group held the following financial
instruments measured at fair value:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010:

Available-for-sale investments: A HHERE -
Listed investments &% &
Derivative financial instruments T4 4@ T A

Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010:

Derivative financial instruments $T4 &g T A

During the year ended 31 March 2010, there were no
transfer of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and time deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills
receivable and accounts and bills payable, which arise
directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is
to manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s
operations. It is, and has been throughout the year under
review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no material interest-bearing borrowings
and believes its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
or United States dollars. Given that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy on it. However,
considering the appreciation of RMB, the Group has
entered into forward currency contracts to manage the
foreign currency risk arising from the Group’s operations.
Moreover, the majority of the Group’s operating assets are
located in the Mainland China and denominated in RMB.
As the Group’s net profit is reported in Hong Kong dollars,
there will be a translation gain/(loss) as a result of the RMB
appreciation/(depreciation).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Foreign currency risk (continueq)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities and
forward currency contracts).

2010 —ZE—ZF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB it 7 A RERE
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB fi#/& 7T H A R FE

2009 —ET N F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB fifii#& 7T 5 A REE R B
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB it 3 A R ¥ FHE

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual basis.
Each of the customers has been attached with a trading
limit and any excess to the limit must be approved by the
general manager of the operation unit. Beside, certain
accounts receivable are covered by credit insurance. Under
the tight control of the credit term and detailed assessment
to the creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
investments, other receivables and derivative instruments,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Company is also exposed to credit
risk through the granting of financial guarantees, further
details of which are disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts and bills receivable are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

None of the Group’s other receivables is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets are included in other
receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g. accounts and bills receivable) and the projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and available banking facilities. The directors have reviewed
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk. The maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was
less than one year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 19 July 2010.
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